
2011-2012

Su sa n Clema ns
Futu re Geologist



2

Organizational Data 	  3

Message from the Executive Vice Chancellor 	  4

Financial Highlights 	  5

Financial Statements 	  11

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 	  15

Notes to the Financial Statements 	  25

University of Houston 	  40

UH Clear Lake 	  45

UH Downtown 	  50

UH Victoria 	  55

UH System Administration 	  60

YOU ARE THE PRIDE 	  65

Silva Tolman
Future Writer



3

Board of Regents
Nelda Luce Blair, The Woodlands
Term Expires August 31, 2013

Jacob M. Monty, Houston
Term Expires August 31, 2013

Michele “Mica” Mosbacher, Houston
Term Expires August 31, 2013

Nandita V. Berry, Houston
Term Expires August 31, 2015

Tilman J. Fertitta, Houston
Term Expires August 31, 2015

Jarvis V. Hollingsworth, Houston
Term Expires August 31, 2015

Spencer d. Armour, III, Midland
Term Expires August 31, 2017

roger f. welder, victoria
Term Expires August 31, 2017

Welcome W. Wilson, JR., Houston
Term Expires August 31, 2017

gage a. raba (student regent), Houston
Term Expires May 31, 2013

Officers of the Board 
(Fiscal Year 2012)

Nelda Luce Blair
Chairman

Michele “Mica” Mosbacher
Vice Chairman

Jarvis V. Hollingsworth
Secretary

Officers of the Board  
(Fiscal Year 2013)
Nelda Luce Blair
Chairman

Jarvis V. Hollingsworth
Vice Chairman

Tilman J. Fertitta
Secretary

Administrative Officers
Renu Khator
Chancellor

John J. Antel
Senior Vice Chancellor 
for Academic Affairs and Provost

Carl P. Carlucci
Executive Vice Chancellor 
for Administration and Finance

Rathindra N. Bose
Vice Chancellor 
for Research and Technology Transfer

Dona H. Cornell
Vice Chancellor 
for Legal Affairs and General Counsel

eloise dunn stuhr
Vice Chancellor for University Advancement

J. RICHARD WALKER 
Vice Chancellor for Student Affairs

Renu Khator
President – University of Houston

William A. Staples
President – UH Clear Lake

William V. Flores 
President – UH Downtown

Philip D. CastilLe
President – UH Victoria

As of August 31,2012



4

I appreciate the opportunity to present the annual financial report 
and statements of the University of Houston System for the fiscal year 
ended August 31, 2012. This presentation provides insights into the 
System’s financial position and the results of operations for the most 
recently concluded fiscal year. The preparation of this financial report 
is yet another way in which the administration and management of 
the UH System fulfill our responsibility to provide prudent and fiduciary 
care over the public assets and resources with which we have  
been entrusted.

This report contains financial statements that have been prepared 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
Responsibility for the accuracy of the information and for the 
completeness and fairness of its presentation, including all disclosures, 
rests with the management of the UH System. We believe that the UH 
System has developed a program of sound and sufficient internal 
accounting controls that provide reasonable assurance that assets 
have been protected and that financial transactions are properly 
recorded. Internal control integrity is maintained by establishing a 
process that develops sound fiscal and budgetary policies and 
procedures, communicating them clearly, and implementing a 
thorough program of internal audits and management reviews.

I encourage you to examine the financial events and 
accomplishments that are highlighted within the narrative and 
graphics accompanying the following financial statements and data. 
Our faculty, staff, and administrators are proud to be members of a 
remarkable university system. Our commitment to excellence extends 
not only to financial responsibility, but also to the delivery of services 
provided to our students and their families, our community, our 
citizens, and our benefactors.

Achievements at each of the UH System universities with respect to 
our performance measures have been strong. Total enrollment has 
increased from 63,846 to 65,256. Total degrees awarded increased 
by 8% to 13,685. Additionally expenditures for federally funded 
research have risen to over $62 million. As a means of enhancing 
our strategic planning activities, our universities have developed 
campus master plans designed to facilitate the accomplishment of 

their enrollment and research targets. During the past year significant 
progress has been made in expanding the reach and accessibility of 
UH System academic programs throughout the Houston region.

For the past several years the System, higher education, and the 
entire global economy, have been exposed to challenging economic 
conditions. The Texas and local economies have weathered these 
financial developments with greater strength than have many 
other environments. Although the legislature has responded to the 
changing economy by reducing general operating funds for public 
universities, it has also allocated targeted funding commitments to 
programs designed to develop more nationally competitive research 
institutions. In coordination with our state leadership, the UH System 
will continue to identify opportunities for enhanced efficiencies and 
cost reduction opportunities. In the process we will demonstrate that 
transparency, accountability, and affordability are strong components 
of UH System operations.

Carl Carlucci
Executive Vice Chancellor
For Administration And Finance
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University of Houston System - Assets
As of August 31, 2012
			   2012		  % 	

Cash and Investments		  $	   1,272,194,880   	 48	
Capital Assets			    1,074,449,417 	 40	
Receivables			    181,725,169 	 7	
Appropriations			   83,182,728   	 3	
Inventories and Other Assets		   50,412,482 	 2
	
Total Assets		  $	  2,661,964,676  	 100	

Mark Arnim
Future Accountant
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Ireñe Cedillo
Future Restaurant Chef

University of Houston System - Liabilities
As of August 31, 2012
			   2012		  % 	

Bonds Payable		  $	   877,035,846   	 72	
Unearned Revenue			    186,194,740 	 15	
Payables and Accrued Liabilities		   117,826,100 	 10	
Accrued Compensable Absences Payable		  23,387,751   	 2	
Funds Held For Others 			    9,009,255 	 1
	
Total Liabilities		  $	  1,213,453,692  	 100	
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University of Houston System - Operating Revenues
As of August 31, 2012
			   2012		  % 	

Tuition and Fees Pledged, Net of Discounts	 $	   442,261,452   	 64	
Auxiliary Enterprise-Pledged		   68,546,446 	 10	
Federal Grant Revenues			    68,095,655 	 10	
State Grant Revenue			   51,228,613   	 7	
Sales of Other Goods and Services-Pledged		    37,866,276  	 5
Local and Private Awards			   19,298,095	 3
Other Operating Revenues			  893,612	 1
	
Total Operating Revenues	 $	  688,190,149  	 100	

Calhoun Elston
Future Photographer
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Elizabeth Bahena
Future Accountant

University of Houston System - Operating Expenses (Natural)
As of August 31, 2012
			   2012		  % 	

Salaries and Benefits		  $	   625,362,161    	 60	
Supplies, Office Operations, Travel		   116,301,308  	 11	
Scholarships			    87,990,783  	 9	
Depreciation and Amortization		  78,675,741    	 8	
Communication and Utilities		     46,436,488   	 4
Other Operating Expenses			   37,879,639 	 4
Financing and Legal			    27,384,436 	 3
Repairs and Maintenance			   14,912,202	 1
	
Total Operating Expenses (Natural)	 $	  1,034,942,758   	 100	
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Mei Chen
Future Teacher

University of Houston System - Revenue									     
As of August 31, 2012
			   2012		  % 	

Operating Revenue  
Tuition and Fees, Net of Discounts	 $	   442,261,452      	 35	
Sales of Goods and Services		   107,306,334   	 9	
All Other Contracts and Grants		   70,526,708   	 6	
Federal Contracts and Grants		  68,095,655     	 5	

Non-Operating Revenue
Legislative Sources			      258,932,816    	 21
Other Revenue			   81,825,465  	 7
Federal Revenue			    78,380,073  	 6
Gifts			   78,122,390 	 6
Other Appropriations			   50,929,094	 4
Endowment Additions			   8,313,140	 1
	
Total Revenue	 	 $	  1,244,693,127    	 100	
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Zachary Bass
Future Computer Engineer

University of Houston System - Total Expenses																				    
As of August 31, 2012
			   2012		  % 	

Operating Expenses  
Salaries and Benefits		  $	   625,362,161       	 56	
Office Operations and Supplies		   177,649,998    	 16	
Scholarships			    87,990,783    	 8	
Depreciation and Amortization		  78,675,741      	 7	
Other Operating Expenses			   35,132,644	 3
Financing and Legal			   27,384,436	 2
Pass Through Expenses			   2,746,995	 1

Non-Operating Expenses
Other Non-Operating Expenses		  38,989,920     	 4
Interest Expense			   38,013,587   	 3
	
Total Expenses (Natural)		 $	  1,111,946,265     	 100	
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University of Houston System  
As of August 31, 2012

Assets		  2012		  2011

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents	 $	 331,228,480 	 $	 218,706,889 
Short-term Investments		  249,721,438 		  149,170,220 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents		  42,779,530 		  (11,615,602)
Legislative Appropriations		  83,182,728 		  89,218,141 
Receivables		  95,088,726 		  121,424,935 
Inventories		  2,018,639 		  2,079,897 
Prepaid Items		  27,231,773 		  28,855,713	
Loans and Contracts		  14,400,435 		  7,502,187 

Total Current Assets	 $	 845,651,749 	 $	 605,342,380 

Non-Current Assets
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents	 $	 9,881,291  	 $	 116,564,993 
Loans and Other Receivables		  45,004,235  		  18,636,900 
Investments		  638,584,140 		  611,561,274
Capital Assets, Non-Depreciable, 		
	     Non-Amortizable		  268,112,709 		  285,959,162 
Capital Assets, Depreciable, 
     Amortizable		 1,753,275,560 		  1,553,293,163 
Accumulated Amortization/Depreciation		  (946,938,852)		  (875,238,570)
Deferred Charges		  48,393,844		  17,614,431

TOTAL Non-current ASSETS	 $	1,816,312,927 	 $	1,728,391,353 

TOTAL ASSETS	 $	2,661,964,676 	 $	2,333,733,733 

Liabilities		  2012	  2011

Current Liabilities
Payables	 $	 85,362,574	 $	 77,662,089 
Unearned Revenues		  186,194,740		  181,832,741
Notes and Loans Payable		  25,123,000		  42,141,000 
Employees’ Compensable Leave		  11,324,349		  11,470,640
Revenue Bonds Payable		  34,705,939		  28,523,915
Claims and Judgments Payable 		  328,795		  307,666
Capital Lease Obligations 		  374,630		  366,160
Funds Held for Others		  9,009,255		  9,506,475

TOTAL Current Liabilities	 $	 352,423,282	 $	 351,810,686

Non-Current Liabilities
Claims and Judgments Payable 	 $	 4,913	 $	 12,742
Employee’s Compensable Leave		  12,063,402		  12,461,428
Revenue Bonds Payable		  842,329,907		  646,446,578
Capital Lease Obligations		  6,632,188		  7,006,818

Total Noncurrent Liabilities	 $	 861,030,410	 $	 665,927,566

Total Liabilities	 $	1,213,453,692	 $	1,017,738,252

Net Assets				  

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt	 $	 450,813,216	 $	 406,009,374
Restricted, Debt Retirement		  55,229,164		  17,363,063
Restricted, Capital Projects		  2,219,178		  5,732,691
Restricted, Endowment Funds 		  413,127,670		  400,780,862
Restricted, Other		  156,605,410		  121,091,734
Unrestricted		  370,516,346		  365,017,757

Total Net Assets	 $	1,448,510,984	 $	1,315,995,481

Statement of net assets
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University of Houston System  
As of August 31, 2012

Operating Revenues		  2012	 2011

Tuition and Fees, Net of Discounts	 $	 442,261,452  	 $	 388,544,719  
Sales of Goods and Services		  107,306,334  		  99,112,343  
Federal Revenue		  68,095,655  		  65,793,464 
State Grant Revenue		  51,228,613  		  47,785,217  
Other Grants and Contracts		  19,298,095  		  18,876,209 

 
Total Operating Revenues	 $	 688,190,149  	 $	 620,111,952  

Operating Expenses 

Instruction	 $	 290,881,984   	 $	 286,300,388  
Research		  97,794,819   		  98,159,064  
Public Service		  44,697,819  		  43,985,006 
Academic Support		  168,312,893  		  159,673,768 
Student Services		  38,417,287  		  36,224,776 
Institutional Support		  97,461,355 		  96,146,853 
Operation and Maintenance of Plant		  54,490,664 		  53,055,146 
Scholarships and Fellowships		  72,390,396		  92,975,555
Auxiliary Enterprises		  91,819,800		  90,188,636
Depreciation and Amortization		  78,675,741		  68,166,442

Total Operating Expenses	 $	1,034,942,758  	 $	1,024,875,634  

Operating Income (Loss)	 $	(346,752,609) 	 $	 (404,763,682)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)		  2012	 2011

Legislative Revenue	 $	 258,932,816 	 $	 273,572,801 
Gifts			   78,122,390 		  83,887,077 
Federal Revenue Non Operating 		   
     (PR-OP Grants and Contributions)		  78,380,073 		  123,028,159 
Investment Income		  15,521,016		  34,793,389
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges		  (38,013,587)		  (31,833,559)
Net Incr (Decr) in Fair Value of Investments  
     (PR-OP Grants and Contributions)		  16,096,586		  29,125,898
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)		  9,743,633 		  (35,845,583) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)	 $	 418,782,927 	 $	 476,728,182 

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues,  
Expenses, Gains, Losses and Transfers	 $	 72,030,318	 $	 71,964,500

Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains, Losses AND Transfers		

Capital Appropriation 
     (Higher Education Assistance Funds)	 $	 50,929,094 	 $	 50,929,094 
Additions to Permanent and 
	     Term Endowments		  8,313,140 		  15,855,061 
Transfers In		  7,877,932 		   
Transfers Out		  (6,344,802)		  (5,277,326)
Legislative Appropriations Lapsed		  (58,820)		  (20,280)

Total Other Revenues, Expenses, 
Gains, Losses and Transfers	 $	 60,716,544 	 $	 61,486,549  

Change In Net Assets	 $	 132,746,862 		  133,451,049	

Net Assets Beginning	 $	1,315,995,481 	 $	 1,182,742,948 
Restatements		  (231,359)		  (198,516)

Net Assets Beginning, as Restated	 $	1,315,764,122 	 $	1,182,544,432 
 
Net Assets, Ending	 $	1,448,510,984		 1,315,995,481

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
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University of Houston System  
As of August 31, 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities		  2012	 2011

Proceeds Received from Students  
     and Customers	 $	 477,730,001   	 $	 435,601,704   
Proceeds from Loan Programs		  148,142,262   		  180,019,620   
Proceeds from Other Revenues		  241,839,816   		  171,954,391  
Payments to Suppliers for Goods  
     and Services		  (213,675,810)  		  (210,490,915)  
Payments to Employees		  (624,899,544)		  (619,780,802)
Payments for Loans Provided		  (154,798,478)		  (170,641,189)
Payments for Other Expenses		  (110,565,742)  		  (121,716,964) 

 
Net Cash Provided (Used) 
By Operating Activities	 $	(236,227,495)  	 $	 (335,054,155)  

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Proceeds from State Appropriations	 $	 264,910,697    	 $	 292,380,206   
Proceeds from Gifts		  53,416,814    		  84,947,599   
Proceeds from Endowments		  8,313,139   		  13,338,938  
Proceeds of Transfers from Other Funds		  53,631,313   		  54,502,124  
Proceeds from Other Revenues		  78,380,073   		  132,128,249  
Payments for Other Uses		  (44,857,248)		  (37,887,194) 

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital  
Financing Activities	 $	 413,794,788   	 $	 539,409,922  

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities		

Proceeds from Capital Financing Activities	 $	 452,549,856   	 $	 155,676,085   
Payments for Additions to Capital Assets		  (189,342,762)  		  (167,798,058)
Payments for Capital Lease		  (366,160)  		  (396,892) 
Payments of Principal and Interest  
	     on Debt Issuance		  (281,331,974)		  (169,987,869)

 
Net Cash Used by Capital and  
Related Financing Activities 	 $	 (18,491,040)  	 $	 (182,506,734)  

Cash Flows from Investing Activities		  2012	 2011

Proceeds from Interest and Investment Income	 $	 591,651,650  	 $	 540,471,115  
Payments to Acquire Investments		  (690,494,882) 		  (515,780,843) 

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities	 $	 (98,843,232) 	 $	 24,690,272  

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and  
	     Cash Equivalents		  60,233,021 		  46,539,305 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 1	 $	 323,656,280  	 $	 277,116,975  

Cash and Cash Equivalents, August 31	 $	 383,889,301	 $	 323,656,280

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
     Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss)	 $	(346,752,609)	 $	 (404,763,682)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
     Provided (Used) by Operating Activities				  

Amortization and Depreciation	 $	 78,675,741  	 $	 68,166,442  
Classification Differences		  (6,656,216) 		  9,462,703  
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables  
     and Loans		  28,786,009  		  (22,660,017) 
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories		  61,258 		  128,131 
(Increase) Decrease in Other Assets		  (7,892,353)		  (1,682,767)
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses		  1,623,940		  3,672,372
Increase (Decrease) in Payables		  10,790,924		  552,530 
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Income		  4,361,999		  9,010,321 
Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities		  773,812		  3,059,812

 
Total Adjustments	 $	 110,525,114  	 $	 69,709,527  
 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	$	(236,227,495)	 $	 (335,054,155)

Statement of Cash Flows
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Matrix of Operating Expenses

University of Houston System  
As of August 31, 2012

Expenses by Natural Classification		  2012	 2011

Cost of Goods Sold	 $	 2,467,156  	 $	 2,523,773  
Salaries and Wages		  509,939,505  		  508,937,364 
Payroll Related Costs		  115,422,656  		  114,534,658 
Professional Fees and Services		  57,522,058  		  49,179,037  
Federal Pass-Through Expenses		  2,443,360		  2,747,182
State Pass-Through Expenses		  303,635		  192,677
Travel			   13,928,362		  12,466,154
Materials and Supplies		  38,254,835		  38,500,482
Communication and Utilities		  46,436,488		  44,989,108
Repairs and Maintenance		  14,912,202		  14,073,497
Rentals and Leases		  24,037,194		  20,864,963
Printing and Reproduction		  4,128,898		  4,370,877
Depreciation and Amortization		  78,675,741		  68,166,442
Interest		  1,957,876		  1,954,078
Scholarships		  87,990,783		  102,013,345
Claims and Losses		  1,389,365		  1,575,577
Other Operating Expenses		  35,132,644  		  37,786,420  

Total Operating Expenses	 $	1,034,942,758 	 $	1,024,875,634  

Expenses by Functional Classification		  2012	 2011

Instruction	 $	 290,881,984 	 $	 286,300,388 
Research		  97,794,819 		  98,159,064 
Public Service		  44,697,819 		  43,985,006 
Academic Support		  168,312,893		  159,673,768
Student Services		  38,417,287 		  36,224,776 
Institutional Support 		  97,461,355		  96,146,853
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 		  54,490,664		  53,055,146
Scholarships and Fellowships		  72,390,396		  92,975,555
Auxiliary Enterprises		  91,819,800		  90,188,636
Depreciation and Amortization		  78,675,741 		  68,166,442 

Total Expenses by Expenditure Function	 $	1,034,942,758 	 $	1,024,875,634 
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Stephanie Geissler
Future Psychologist

INTRODUCTION 
The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section 
of the University of Houston System’s Annual Financial Report has 
been prepared to provide an overview of the activities and the 
financial performance of the University of Houston System (the 
System) for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2012. This presentation 
is intended to offer a summary of significant current year activities, 
resulting changes, and currently known economic conditions and 
facts. This analysis should be read in conjunction with the System’s 
basic financial statements and the notes to the statements.

BACKGROUND 
The University of Houston System (UHS), serving the nation’s fourth 
largest city and its metropolitan area, as well as the upper 
Texas Gulf Coast region, is part of the state-supported system of 
higher education in Texas. UHS is the region’s largest provider of 
comprehensive (baccalaureate to doctorate) higher education 
services. The System is comprised of four universities and a 
supporting System Administration (UHSA). The four universities 
are University of Houston (UH), University of Houston – Clear Lake 
(UHCL), University of Houston – Downtown (UHD), and University of 
Houston – Victoria (UHV); all of which are located along the Texas 
Gulf Coast. The University of Houston, the flagship institution of the 
System, is its principal doctoral degree-granting institution, and is 
a comprehensive research university. The University of Houston – 
Clear Lake is an upper-level/master ’s university located in southeast 
Houston with close ties to NASA’s Johnson Space Center and 
regional community colleges. University of Houston – Downtown, 
Houston’s second largest university after UH and the most ethnically 
diverse university in the state, is a predominantly undergraduate 
institution with a limited but growing number of master ’s programs. 
University of Houston – Victoria is an undergraduate and master ’s-
level institution that, for the first time in fall 2010, began enrolling 
freshmen and sophomores as it seeks to become a destination 
university in the Coastal Bend region of Texas. Each of the UHS 
universities also have a significant presence through off-campus 
teaching centers located in the northwest, southeast, southwest 
and west Houston metropolitan areas. From these facilities UHS 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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universities are able to reach many students in Houston and 
beyond through extensive online programs, as well as through 
classroom instruction. The UH System Administration is responsible for 
coordinating the operations of the universities, as well as providing 
select centralized services. Among universities nationwide, the UH 
System remains a model of diversity and a reflection of the city and 
region it serves.

The System’s Chancellor and Board of Regents have led a 
comprehensive strategic planning process through which new 
mission statements, goals, principles, and accountability measures 
have been developed for the System and its universities. In 
addition, the universities have developed enrollment and research 
projections for the current decade and have developed academic 
and facilities master plans. These plans are intended to identify 
the programs, faculty, staff, and infrastructure needed to achieve 
enrollment and research projections, as well as the resources 
needed to accomplish them. The UHS universities are also working 
collaboratively on four system-wide initiatives – international 
education; health sciences research and education; pathways for 
faculty collaboration among institutions; and pathways for student 
transfer among institutions. Central to all of these planning activities 
are the UH System’s primary goals – student access and success, 
national competitiveness, and community advancement – all 
of which further Texas’s goals for higher education, as well as the 
social and economic well-being and development of the Houston 
metropolitan area. UH System performance with respect to measures 
on its progress and goals objectives has been strong. The System 
has improved performance on most of its key progress measures 
this fiscal year and is positioned for continued success in the future. 
Examples of UHS accomplishments on the FY2012 progress report 
include: total enrollment increased to 65,256 from 63,846 in FY2011; 
total degrees awarded increased to 13,685 from 12,664 in FY2011; 
and total federal research expenditures increased to $62 million 
from $54 million in FY2011.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The financial statements for fiscal year 2012 have been prepared in 
accordance with accounting pronouncements promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). These include 

Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments, 
and GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements – and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – for Public Colleges and 
Universities. The requirements focus on the preparation of financial 
statements that present financial operations in the aggregate, rather 
than accountability by individual fund group. These standards were 
adopted by the State of Texas and the System during the 2002 fiscal 
year. All financial statements for fiscal years 2002 through 2012 
have been prepared in accordance with these rules. Additionally, 
these statements conform to reporting requirements of the Texas 
Comptroller of Public Accounts and to guidelines issued by the 
National Association of College and University Business Officers.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 35 
requires the System to include three financial statements in the 
annual financial report. They are (1) the Statement of Net Assets, (2) 
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, 
and (3) the Statement of Cash Flows. The information contained in 
the financial statements of the University of Houston System is part of 
and included in the State of Texas Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report. The financial statements of the System are presented for the 
fiscal year ended August 31, 2012, with financial data for the fiscal 
year ended August 31, 2011, provided for comparative purposes. 
Prior year totals have been reclassified, when necessary, to reflect 
current year changes in reporting procedures and to enhance 
comparability of reported totals.

The format of the Texas statewide financial statements presents a 
comprehensive perspective of the state’s financial activities. The 
state’s activities are divided into three types for presentation in the 
primary financial statements. They are Governmental Activities, 
Business-type Activities, and Component Units. The financial 
operations of the University of Houston System are considered a 
business-type activity because the System’s universities charge 
a fee, in the form of tuition, to customers in order to pay for a 
significant percentage of the cost of the services provided. Under 
this classification, the System’s financial statements conform to the 
guidelines and presentation formats prescribed for Proprietary Funds.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
The first schedule presented is the Statement of Net Assets. The 
statement reflects the System’s assets and liabilities using the full 
accrual basis of accounting, and represents financial position as 
of the conclusion of the fiscal year. This is a point in time financial 
presentation and presents a snapshot view of the financial status as 
of August 31, 2012. Comparative data for the previous fiscal year has 
also been presented as of August 31, 2011. Assets and liabilities are 
presented as either current or non-current to provide an indication 
of their anticipated liquidation. Net Assets is equal to Assets minus 
Liabilities. Unrestricted Net Assets are available to the System for any 
lawful purpose. Unrestricted Net Assets often have constraints on 
resources, which are imposed by management or implied by statutes 
or regulations, but can be removed or modified. On August 31, 2012, 
the University of Houston System’s Assets totaled $2.662 billion, and 
Liabilities totaled $1.213 billion, resulting in a Net Asset valuation of 
$1.449 billion. This represents an increase in net assets of $133 million. 
Asset increases occurred in investment balances due in part to the 
continued improvement of market driven increases in the valuation 

SCHEDULE of UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 
2 Year Comparison, Rounded to Millions	 	 2012	 2011

RESERVED FOR: 
Accounts Receivable	 $	 50	 $	 31
Encumbrances		  16		  16
Higher Education Fund		  49		  58
Future Operating Budget		  57		  41
Student Fees Restricted by Statute		  15		  12
Other Funds		  80		  71

UNRESERVED ALLOCATED: 
Service Department Operating	 $	 9	 $	 2
Auxiliary Enterprise Operating		  6		  4
Endowment and Loan Funds		  57		  51
Retirement of Indebtedness 		  2		  0
Student Fees Limited to Purpose		  26 		  23
Unallocated		  4		  56

Total Unrestricted Net Assets	 $	 371  	 $	 365   

James S. Lavelle
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of the endowment fund and non-endowed intermediate term 
investments. Capital asset acquisitions and holdings increased as 
a result of ongoing campus construction projects. The short term 
student loans receivable balance also experienced an increase. 
Changes in the Liabilities balance reflect a decrease in notes 
payable due to reductions in the amount of outstanding commercial 
paper. The issuance of additional long term bonded debt resulted in 
an increase in the revenue bonds payable balance.

The Statement of Net Assets enables the reader of the financial 
statements to determine the assets available for use in the 
continuing operations of the institutions. Also, the reader will be able 
to determine the amounts owed to vendors, investors, and lending 
institutions. Net Assets are presented in three major categories: 
invested in capital assets, net of debt; restricted net assets; and 
unrestricted net assets. The invested in capital assets category 
identifies the equity in property, plant, and equipment owned 
by the System. Restricted net assets are comprised of two sub 
categories: non-expendable and expendable. Non-expendable 
restricted net assets are available only for endowed investment 
purposes. Expendable net assets are available for expenditure but 
must be expended for the purposes specified by the external donor 
or provider of the assets. Unrestricted net assets are available for 
any lawful purposes of the institution. Although not subject to the 
stipulations of external requirements, a significant portion of the 
System’s unrestricted net assets are committed to various future 
operating budgets related to academic, research, and capital 
programs and projects. Additional net asset balances are reserved 
for specific purposes by nature of their origin. These commitments 
are summarized in the accompanying table (Schedule of 
Unrestricted Net Assets).

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
The next statement comprising the primary financial statements is the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets. This 
schedule identifies operating and non-operating revenues received 
by the System. Additionally, both the operating and non-operating 
expenses incurred by the System during the fiscal year are displayed. 

Devlin Buren 
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Finally, any other gains and losses or other forms of revenue and 
expense are reported.

During the 2012 fiscal year the System recognized operating 
revenues of $688 million and operating expenses of $1.035 billion. 
After recognizing non-operating activities and other gains and losses, 
the System realized a net increase in net assets of $132.7 million, 
compared to a net asset increase of $133.5 million during the 
prior fiscal year. This relatively flat change in financial position is a 
result of several factors. During 2012 operating revenues increased 
moderately, attributable to greater tuition and fee collections due to 
an increase in student semester credit hours attempted. Revenues 
from sponsored grant activity rose. However the System experienced 
a decrease in state appropriated funding. Gift income and 
investment earnings were not as robust as had been experienced 
during 2011. Operating expenses for student success initiatives also 
were moderately elevated reflecting increased levels of spending for 
instruction, academic support, and student services.

Revenues and expenses are classified as either operating or 
non-operating in the financial statements. Operating revenues 
are received and recognized as a result of providing services to 
the component universities’ customers. Tuition and fee revenues 
are reported net of any scholarship discounts and allowances. A 
scholarship allowance is the difference between the stated charge 
for services provided by the System and the amount that is paid 
by the student or third parties making payments on behalf of the 
student. Funds received to satisfy student tuition and fee charges  
are reported as revenue only once. Institutional resources provided 
to students as financial aid are reported as scholarship allowances  
in amounts up to and equal to amounts owed by the students  
to the System.

Operating expenses are the costs necessary to provide services 
to customers and to fulfill the mission of the System. Operating 
expenses are displayed in the Statement using the functional 
method of classification. The functional, or programmatic, 
classification method presents operating expenses in a manner that 
reflects the System’s commitments in fulfilling its mission of instruction, 
research, and public service, as well as the requirements of 

supporting and maintaining its administrative and physical structure. 
A supplemental Schedule of Operating Expenses displays operating 
expenses comparing the functional classification and the natural 
classification methods. The natural method of presentation displays 
the operating expenses in a manner that categorizes the objects 
of expenditure within various cost centers. Non-operating revenues 
are those received for which no services are directly provided. State 
appropriations are classified as non-operating revenue because 
they are provided by the Legislature to the System without the 
Legislature directly receiving goods or services for those revenues. 
Additionally certain federal resources for student financial aid, as 
well as most gift revenue, are classified as non-operating revenue. 
Significant portions of the System’s recurring resources are classified 
as non-operating. Net resources from other than operating revenues 
totaled $508 million for fiscal year 2012, compared to $606 million 
for the prior fiscal year.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
The third primary statement included in the financial statements is 
the Statement of Cash Flows. This schedule explains the change 
during the fiscal year in cash and cash equivalents, regardless of 
whether there are restrictions on their use. The Statement of Cash 
Flows should be used in conjunction with related disclosures and 
information in the other financial statements. The statement can 
provide relevant information about an entity, such as the ability 
to generate future net cash flows, the ability to meet obligations 
when due, or reasons for differences between operating income 
and associated cash receipts and payments. The statement is 
comprised of five sections. The first section recognizes the cash flows 
from operating activities as well as the net cash used by operating 
activities. The second section identifies the cash flows from non-
capital financing activities. The third section reflects the cash flows 
from capital and related financing activities. The next section details 
the cash flows from investing activities. The final section reconciles 
net cash used to the operating loss or income reflected on the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets.

The cash and cash equivalents balance at the conclusion of the 
2012 fiscal year totaled $384 million, which reflected a net increase 
in cash balances of $60 million.
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CAPITAL ASSETS 
As fundamental as instruction and research are to the universities 
within UHS, these endeavors cannot take place without the land, 
buildings, facilities, equipment, and information technology 
infrastructure needed to support them. Sustaining these assets requires 
a significant investment in renovations, improvements, expansion, and 
maintenance. The goal of expending resources for these investments 
is achieving a safe, modern, and efficient campus environment that 
is conducive to learning, teaching, research, and community service. 
UHS institutions continue to implement their long-range capital plans.

At the end of the 2012 fiscal year, the System had $1.074 billion of 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. 
These assets included land, buildings, infrastructure and improvements, 
furniture and equipment, library books, computer systems software, and 
works of art. Several major capital construction projects are in various 
stages of completion, and the cumulative investment in these assets 
is reported as construction in progress. Net capital assets at August 31, 
2011 totaled $964 million. As required by GASB reporting standards, 
the System reports accumulated depreciation and amortization on 
its capital assets. Additionally, the System recognizes a current year 
charge for depreciation and amortization expense.

Building on a strategic planning process initiated under the leadership 
of the Chancellor and the Board of Regents, the UHS universities have 
developed a campus master planning process designed to identify 
facilities needs congruent with enrollment and research projections 
that are consistent with their missions and academic master plans. 
During fiscal year 2012 the System continued its efforts to implement 
the capital projects construction element of its master plan. At UH, 
construction projects that were completed included the Classroom 
and Business Building, Cougar Woods Dining Hall, the Stadium 
Parking Garage, and renovations at the Blaffer Museum. Ongoing 
development continued at the 74 acre UH Energy Research Park 
(UHERP) that is designed to provide research and classroom space for 
programs such as petroleum engineering, as well as energy research 
centers and institutes. UHERP projects that were completed included 
laboratory and research facilities in Building 19, collaboration and 
conference facilities in Building 3, and administrative facilities in 
Buildings 1 and 4. At UH – Clear Lake additions and renovations were 
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completed at the Arbor Building, which houses instructional and 
academic facilities. At UH – Downtown an expansion of the Parking 
Garage adjacent to the existing Academic Building was completed.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
The System engages in the prudent use of debt to finance capital 
projects, as a means of maximizing the management of financial 
and physical resources. A combination of variable and fixed rate 
debt, consistent with the System’s debt management policy, is 
maintained. The System has sufficient debt capacity to finance 
planned capital improvements and facilities. Detailed information 
concerning the System’s long-term debt is found in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements.

The University of Houston System is authorized by statute to issue long 
term debt in the form of revenue bonds. Each series of revenue 
bonds issued is backed by a pledged revenue source specified 
in the bond resolution. Additionally, each issue is designed to be 
self-supporting from the primary revenue source. A portion of debt 
service is funded by biennial State appropriations. At August 31, 
2012, the University of Houston System had $877 million of long term 
bonded debt outstanding, $35 million of which will be retired during 
the 2013 fiscal year. 

In fiscal year 2012, the University of Houston System issued $265.5 
million of Consolidated Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2011-
A. Proceeds from this bond issue provided $78.2 million to refund 
the Consolidated Revenue Bonds, Series 2002-A and $9.3 million 
to refund the Consolidated Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002-
B, as well as providing financing for the acquisition, construction, 
or renovation of the University Center, Quadrangle, Moody Towers, 
Cougar Place, Cougar Village 2, Radio Station, Parking Garage 1A, 
and various buildings at UH Energy Research Park at the University 
of Houston and Residential Housing at UH – Victoria. Consolidated 
Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2011-B, issued in the 
amount of $21.3 million, provided funding to defease certain 
outstanding commercial paper notes of the System and financing 
for construction costs for West Dining Hall and renovation of the 
University Center at the University of Houston.

Kevin Castaneda
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Build America Bonds (BABs) were created as part of the federal 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA). Taxable 
bonds may be issued by governmental entities, including state 
agencies and state universities, as Tax Credit BABs or as Direct 
Payment BABs. Tax Credit BABs provide a federal tax credit to 
investors equal to 35 percent of the interest received from the bond 
issuer. Direct Payment BABs provide a direct federal reimbursement 
to state and local governmental issuers equal to 35 percent of the 
interest paid on the bonds. During the 2010 fiscal year the UH System 
issued $79.9 million of Consolidated Revenue and Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2010-B, taxable revenue bonds under the Direct Payment 
BABs program. A balance of $79.9 million remained outstanding at 
August 31, 2012. No Tax Credit BABs were issued.

The System established a commercial paper program during the 
2008 fiscal year, which permits the issuance of commercial paper 
notes which may not exceed, in the aggregate, a principal amount 
of $125 million at any one time. The maximum maturity for the 
commercial paper is 270 days and is issued at tax exempt and 
taxable interest rates. The commercial paper program provides 
interim financing for the costs of various capital projects within the 
System. In fiscal year 2012, the University of Houston System issued 
$51.8 million of commercial paper notes. On August 31, 2012, 
commercial paper notes payable totaled $25.1 million, compared 
to $42.1 million at the end of the previous fiscal year.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 
As the global economy becomes increasingly driven by the creation 
of new knowledge and technological innovation, success for the 
Houston metropolitan area depends increasingly on the existence 
of a highly-skilled, professional workforce and cutting-edge research 
and development. As the region’s largest provider of comprehensive 
(baccalaureate to doctorate) higher education services, the 
University of Houston System plays a leading role in meeting these 
needs. In doing so, the UHS universities must succeed in providing 
access to a regional population that is growing increasingly 
diverse at a very rapid rate. During the 2012 fiscal year, the ethnic 
population of the Houston metropolitan area was 17% African-
American, 35% Hispanic, 7% Asian, and 41% white. The student 
population at the UH System, closely mirroring this diversity, was 

comprised of 16% African-American, 26% Hispanic, 15% Asian, and 
43% white students. Clearly, UHS is doing a good job of providing 
access to a diverse student population, although there is room for 
improvement with respect to the burgeoning Hispanic population. UH 
System performance with respect to the rankings on its progress and 
goals measures has also been commendable.

With the UH System improving performance on most of its key 
progress and goals measures this year, the System continues to 
be positioned for success in future years. To harness this potential, 
the UH System universities have been engaged in regular strategic 
planning activities over the past half-decade. In fiscal year 2010, 
the universities established five- and ten-year targets for enrollment 
and research that correspond to their updated mission statements. 
The universities have developed campus master plans designed 
to facilitate the accomplishment of their enrollment and research 
targets. Over the past year, the UHS universities have also been 
working on the four collaborative, system-wide initiatives identified 
by Chancellor Khator in 2009, specifically, international education, 
health sciences research and education, pathways for faculty 
collaboration among institutions, and pathways for student transfer 
among institutions.

During the 2012 fiscal year, much progress has been achieved in 
expanding the reach and accessibility of UH System academic 
programs throughout the metropolitan Houston region. Growth at 
the UH System’s off-campus teaching centers has been substantial 
(12% in the past year alone), fueled by UH’s growth in Sugar Land 
(24%), UH’s and UHD’s growth in Northwest Houston (48%), and 
UHCL’s growth at the Pearland campus (40%). The UHS universities 
are also taking a much improved and coordinated approach 
to undergraduate admissions. The applications of students not 
accepted to the University of Houston are now immediately directed 
to UHD and UHV, and undergraduates at all four universities now 
have the ability to seamlessly take up to six hours at one of the other 
UHS institutions. These new services facilitate enrollment at the UHS 
universities and make it easier for students to complete a degree.

As is the case for the UHS universities, the UH – System Administration 
has reduced its budgets to account for the reduction in state 
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appropriations. To accomplish these reductions, staff were  
reduced in the central administration, and both staff and  
operations support were reduced at the UH System centers, as  
well as at the university campuses.

Following is a brief discussion of the primary initiatives on which  
UHS administration and universities will focus during the 2013 fiscal 
year. (1) UH System campus master planning and collaborative 
initiatives: In fiscal year 2013, UH – System Administration, in 
collaboration with campus leadership, will continue campus master 
planning activities. UH will analyze and address inefficiencies in  
its use of research and instructional space, UHV and UHCL will 
continue downward expansion planning activities, and UHD will 
address transportation and parking issues associated with its  
space-limited urban campus. With respect to collaborative 
initiatives, the UH System will begin the process of securing 
accreditation for its system-wide nursing program in fiscal year 2013. 
(2) UH System off-campus program expansion: In fiscal year 2013, 
the UH System will continue to expand program delivery at the 
off-campus teaching centers. Specifically, next year UH will deliver 
the Bauer MBA at the Northwest campus and two new programs 
at Sugar Land – the BS in Digital Media and the MS in Sports and 
Fitness Administration. (3) Shared services initiative: Currently, the 
UH System has shared services among its universities valued at 
$27.7 million. At the request of the UHS Board of Regents, the UHS 
universities have identified additional operations that could be 
shared in order to reduce costs (including training, payroll, benefits, 
and affirmative action, among other services). In FY2013, the 
universities will implement a system-wide electronic time-keeping 
system for hourly employees. Replacing the manual, paper-based 
system currently employed will save time and money and improve 
the accuracy of records. (4) 83rd Texas Legislature: Strong support 
from the Texas Legislature is critical if UH System universities are to 
achieve their goals of excellence. When the 83rd Texas Legislature 
opens in January 2013, the UH System will implement a legislative 
agenda that demonstrates the value of its institutions to the state, 
so that UHS will be well-positioned for potential increased funding, 
should it become available, and legislation that supports UHS 
operations. (5) Federal legislative agenda: During fiscal year 2013 
the UH System will develop and pursue its federal agenda for fiscal 
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year 2014, which will advocate on behalf of federal research 
programs important to UHS faculty and policy issues related to 
higher education, including Pell Grants. In the process, it will be 
incumbent to demonstrate that transparency, accountability and 
affordability have been, and will continue to be, strong components 
of UH System operations.

The United States and the world experienced a significant downturn 
in their financial environments and economies beginning in mid 
calendar year 2008. The recessionary situation was characterized 
by a contraction of credit, high unemployment, falling prices in 
housing, rising foreclosures, and deflated valuations for equities and 
other investment instruments. While the most recent recession has 
technically ended, uncertainty remains as to when the economy 
will begin to experience greater expansion than currently exists 
and when unemployment rates, housing markets, and economic 
productivity will improve. Uncertainty continues to persist as to future 
tax and interest rate policy in the United States. Although valuations 
for equities and other investment instruments have rebounded from 
their depressed levels of mid calendar year 2008 to March 2009, 
there continues to be increased volatility and unpredictability in 
valuations for equities and other investment instruments.

The duration of the economic issues facing the state and the U.S. 
cannot be predicted, however UHS administration believes that its 
financial management continues to demonstrate strength and a 
capacity to respond and adjust to ongoing economic uncertainties. 
Although it is not possible to predict ultimate results, management 
believes the University of Houston System will continue to maintain a 
sound financial position, and will be administratively structured and 
governed in a manner that will equip the System to withstand the 
current national and international financial situations. The System 
continues to stand committed to the principles of prudent and 
sound stewardship. UHS will not compromise on its long-term goals. 
Its commitment to student success, research development, and 
responsibility to the community will remain at the forefront of the 
financial decision making process.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Joshua Yang
Future Doctor

GENERAL INTRODUCTION 
The State Auditor of Texas has not audited the accompanying 
Annual Financial Report and therefore, an opinion has not been 
nor will be expressed on the financial statements and related 
information contained in this report. The information contained in 
the combined financial statements of the University of Houston 
System, and its related components, is part of and included in 
the State of Texas Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, upon 
which an opinion is expressed. The state’s financial statements are 
audited by the State Auditor.

ENTITY 
The University of Houston System (the System) is an agency of the 
State of Texas and its financial records comply with state statutes 
and regulations. This includes compliance with the Texas Comptroller 
of Public Accounts’ Reporting Requirements for Annual Financial 
Reports of State Agencies and Universities.

The University of Houston System serves the state as the primary 
provider of educational and cultural opportunities, skilled employers  
and leaders, technical knowledge, and innovative research to the 
Houston metropolitan area and the upper Texas Gulf Coast region. 
Houston and the upper Gulf Coast region represent approximately  
one fourth of the state’s population and economy.

The System was established by House Bill No. 188, Sixty-Fifth 
Legislature, Regular Session, effective September 1, 1977. 
Components of the System are System Administration (1977), 
University of Houston (1963), Clear Lake (1973), Downtown (1974), 
and Victoria (1973). The System is governed by an appointed nine 
member Board of Regents.

During the 2002 fiscal year, the State of Texas adopted 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 
34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis - for State and Local Governments, and GASB Statement 
No. 35, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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and Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities. These accounting 
pronouncements established new reporting requirements including 
the presentation of new financial information and a restructuring 
of the presentation of previous fiscal years. Since the System’s 
annual financial report is not subject to a separate financial audit, 
certain information, such as a complete set of Government-Wide 
Financial Statements, is not included in the accompanying report. 
The financial statements are presented in columnar form, including 
totals for prior year data. Prior year totals have been restated when 
necessary to reflect current year changes in reporting procedures 
and to permit comparability of reported totals.

No component units have been identified which should have been 
discretely presented in the financial statements.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
A. Fund Structure  
The accompanying financial statements are presented on the 
basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting 
entity. The operations of the System and its component universities 
are considered to be a Business-Type Activity. The System charges 
fees to external users for goods and services. Consequently the 
accompanying financial statements are presented using the 
Proprietary Fund type structure.

B. Basis of Accounting
The basis of accounting determines when revenues and expenses 
are recognized in the accounts reported in the financial statements. 
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund 
is determined by its measurement focus.

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the accrual basis of 
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized at the time 
liabilities are incurred. Proprietary funds distinguish operating from 
non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses result from 
providing services or producing and delivering goods in connection 
with the proprietary funds’ principal ongoing operations. Operating 
expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative 
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. 

C. Budget and Budgetary Accounting
The budget is prepared biennially and represents appropriations 
authorized by the legislature and approved by the Governor (the 
General Appropriations Act). Additionally the System prepares an 
annual budget which represents anticipated sources of revenues  
and authorized uses. This budget is approved by the System’s Board 
of Regents. Unencumbered appropriations are generally subject  
to lapse 60 days after the end of the fiscal year for which they  
were appropriated.

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets 
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Short-term highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less are considered cash equivalents..

Restricted Assets
Restricted assets include monies or other resources restricted by 
legal or contractual requirements. These assets include proceeds  
of revenue bonds and revenues set aside for statutory or  
contractual requirements.

Inventories and Prepaid Items
Inventories include both merchandise inventories on hand for 
sale and consumable inventories. Inventories are valued at cost, 
generally utilizing the last-in, first-out method. Prepaid items reflect 
payments for costs applicable to future accounting periods. 
The consumption method of accounting is used to account for 
inventories and prepaid items. The cost of these items is expensed 
when the items are consumed.

Capital Assets
Assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year are capitalized. These  
assets are capitalized at cost or, if not purchased, at appraised fair 
value as of the date of acquisition. Depreciation is reported on all 
exhaustible assets. Inexhaustible assets such as library books, works 
of art, and historical treasures are not depreciated. Depreciation is 
charged to operations over the estimated useful life of each asset, 
using the straight-line method.
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Other Receivables
Other current receivables include year-end revenue accruals not 
included in any other receivable category. Non-current receivable 
balances are not expected to be collected within one year of fiscal 
year end.

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 
Accounts payable represent the liability for the value of assets or 
services received at the balance sheet date for which payment  
is pending. 

Other Payables 
Other current payables are the accrual at year-end of expenditure 
transactions not included in any of the other payable descriptions. 
Non-current payable balances are not expected to be paid within 
one year of fiscal year end.

Employees’ Compensable Leave Balances 
Employees’ compensable leave balances represent the liability  
that becomes due upon the occurrence of relevant events such  
as resignations, retirements, and uses of leave balances by  
covered employees. Liabilities are reported separately as either 
current or noncurrent in the Statement of Net Assets.

Bonds Payable - Revenue Bonds
The bonds payable are reported at par, less unamortized discount 
or plus unamortized premium. Interest expense is reported on the 
accrual basis, with amortization of discount or premium. Payables 
are reported separately as either current or noncurrent in the 
Statement of Net Assets.

NET ASSETS 
The difference between fund assets and liabilities is Net Assets.

Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by 
outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt that are 
attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of  
those assets. 

Restricted Net Assets 
Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net asset 
use are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, 
and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Assets
Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets, which do not meet 
the definition of the two preceding categories. Unrestricted net 
assets often have constraints on resources, which are imposed by 
management, but can be removed or modified.

CAPITAL ASSETS
The System reports accumulated depreciation on capital 
assets and amortization on intangible assets. Depreciation and 
amortization expenses are recognized as current year charges. 

At August 31, 2012, non-depreciable capital assets, consisting 
of land and construction in progress, totaled $268,112,709. 
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and 
consisting of buildings, infrastructure, facilities, equipment, library 
books, and works of art totaled $759,288,368. Intangible assets,  
net of accumulated amortization and consisting of computer 
software and other intangible assets total $47,048,340.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 
A. Deposits of Cash in Bank 
At August 31, 2012, the carrying amount of the System’s cash 
deposits was $10,229,289 and the bank balance was $1,868,001. 
There were no deposits to foreign banks.

B. Investments
The University of Houston System is authorized by statute to make 
investments following the “prudent person rule”. There were no 
significant violations of legal provisions during the period.

The fair value of investments, including short-term, long-term, and 
money market cash equivalents, as of the balance sheet date was 
$1,218,396,830. 
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Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an 
investment will not fulfill its obligations. The general investment 
policy of the University limits investments in debt securities that are 
not in the top three investment grade ratings issued by nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations to 5% of total investments. 
As of August 31, 2012, the System had no direct investment in 
securities with credit risk exposure that exceeded its policy limit. 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributable to the 
magnitude of investment in a single issuer. As of August 31, 2012, 
the University ’s concentration of credit risk in any single issuer did not 
exceed 5% of total investment assets as reported on the Statement 
of Net Assets.

C. Investment Transactions
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 
The System, by statute, is authorized to enter into reverse repurchase 
agreements. The System did not invest in any reverse repurchase 
agreements during the fiscal year. 

Securities Lending
Securities lending is authorized by state statutes. The System does 
not participate in a security-lending program. 

Derivative Investing
The System did not hold any collateralized mortgage obligations  
at fiscal year-end. The System does not enter into forward-exchange 
contracts to manage exposure of foreign portfolio holdings to 
changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

DISCOUNTS AND ALLOWANCES 
The System reports revenues net of discounts and allowances  
in proprietary funds. Discounts and allowances are calculated 
based on historical experience. For the fiscal year 2012  
discounts and allowances that related to tuition and fee  
revenues totaled $87,461,406.

SHORT TERM LIABILITIES 
In the prior fiscal year the System issued commercial paper 
(Consolidated Revenue Commercial Paper Notes, Series A) to  
facilitate renovation and construction projects at the University of 
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Houston and UH-Victoria. The balance was redeemed during fiscal 
year 2012. Additional commercial paper was issued during  
fiscal 2012, the proceeds of which were used to provide interim 
financing for renovation and construction projects at UH.

LONG TERM LIABILITIES
A. Notes and Loans Payable 
The System reported a balance of $25,148,398 including interest as 
of August 31, 2012.

B. Claims and Judgments
At August 31, 2012, various lawsuits and claims involving the System 
and/or its components were pending. While the ultimate liability, if 
any, with respect to litigation and other claims asserted against  
the System cannot be reasonably estimated at this time, such 
liability, to the extent not provided for by insurance or otherwise, is 
not expected to have a material effect on System accounts.

C. Employees’ Compensable Leave
A state employee is entitled to be paid for all unused vacation time 
accrued, in the event of the employee’s resignation, dismissal, or 
separation from state employment, provided the employee has had 
continuous employment with the state for six months. An expense 
and liability are recorded as the benefits accrue to employees. 
The liability for unpaid benefits is recorded in the Statement of Net 
Assets. No liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulating rights to 
receive sick pay benefits.

Full-time state employees earn annual leave from eight to twenty-
one hours per month depending on the respective employees’  
years of state employment. The state’s policy is that an employee 
may carry his accrued leave forward from one fiscal year to  
another fiscal year with a maximum number of hours up to 532 for 
those employees with 35 or more years of state service. Accrued 
leave in excess of the normal maximum was converted to sick  
leave at the conclusion of fiscal year 2012. Employees with at least 
six months of state service who terminate their employment are 
entitled to payment for all accumulated annual leave up to the 
maximum allowed.

Alma Sameer
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Lump sum payments made to employees, who separated from 
state service during the 2012 fiscal year, for accrued vacation and 
compensatory leave, totaled $2,613,091.

BONDED INDEBTEDNESS
A. Outstanding Revenue Bonds 
Consolidated Revenue Bonds, Series 2002-A 
–– To finance the acquisition, purchase, construction, improvement, 
enlargement and equipping of property, buildings, structures, 
activities, services, operations and other facilities, roads or related 
infrastructure for or on behalf of the University of Houston System 
and the individual campuses of the System. 

–– Proceeds were used to finance the renovation of M.D. Anderson 
Library and to build the Science and Engineering Research 
Building (UH), to build the Student Services and Classroom 
Building (UHCL), to build the Commerce Street Building (UHD)  
and renovation of the University West building (UHV).

–– Issued 9-1-2002.

–– $130,955,000; all bonds authorized have been issued.

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Tuition and various other 
revenues and balances that may be legally available  
for payment of debt obligations (Funding for fiscal year 2012 
partially from Legislative Appropriation-Tuition Revenue Bonds).

Consolidated Revenue Variable Rate Demand Bonds,  
Series 2004
–– To finance the acquisition, purchase, construction, improvement, 
enlargement and equipping of property, buildings, structures, 
activities, services, operations and other facilities, roads or related 
infrastructure for or on behalf of the University of Houston System 
and the individual campuses of the System. 

–– Proceeds were used for renovations following Tropical Storm Allison.

–– Issued 6-16-2004.

–– $25,000,000; all bonds authorized have been issued.

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Tuition and various other 
fees, and revenues and balances that may be legally available 
for payment of debt obligations. (Funding for fiscal year 2012 fully 

from Legislative Appropriation-Tuition Revenue Bonds).

–– The bonds bear interest at a variable rate, which is determined on 
a weekly basis each Wednesday. The rate is effective for a seven 
day period commencing on the immediately following Thursday. 
The variable rate in effect on August 31, 2012 was 0.16%.

–– Bondholders have the option to tender their bonds for purchase 
at the price equal to the principal amount thereof, plus accrued 
interest, at the times and subject to the conditions described in 
the bond resolution. Tendered bonds may be remarketed, and 
remain outstanding. Bonds tendered for purchase will be paid 
first from the proceeds of remarketing, if any, and then from the 
legally available money advanced by the Board of Regents. 
In order to provide for the payment of the purchase price of 
tendered bonds, the Board has agreed to provide self-liquidity. 
The Board has not entered into an agreement with an outside 
entity to provide liquidity in the event that the remarketing agent 
is unable to remarket the bonds on an optional tender date. 
Liquidity support for the bonds will be provided by the System’s 
funds and is expected to be provided first from funds invested  
in the System’s non-endowed investment pool and money  
market accounts.

–– Outstanding bonds maturing subsequent to 02-15-2012, totaling 
$860,000 were extinguished early by using existing assets.

Consolidated Revenue Bonds, Series 2005
–– To finance the acquisition, purchase, construction, improvement, 
enlargement and equipping of property, buildings, structures, 
activities, services, operations and other facilities, roads or related 
infrastructure for or on behalf of the University of Houston System 
and the individual campuses of the System.

–– Proceeds were used to construct the Welcome Center  
Garage (UH).

–– Issued 4-1-2005.

–– $25,800,000; all bonds authorized have been issued.

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Tuition and various other fees, 
and revenues and balances that may be legally available for 
payment of debt obligations. 
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Consolidated Revenue Bonds, Series 2006
–– To finance the acquisition, purchase, construction, improvement, 
enlargement and equipping of property, buildings, structures, 
activities, services, operations and other facilities, roads or related 
infrastructure for or on behalf of the University of Houston System 
and the individual campuses of the System. 

–– Proceeds were used to construct the Shea Street Academic 
Building and Parking Facility (UHD).

–– Issued 2-1-2006.

–– $35,140,000; all bonds authorized have been issued.

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Tuition and various other fees 
that may be legally available for payment of debt obligations.

General Obligation Bonds 
At August 31, 2012, the System had no bonds payable classified as 
General Obligation Bonds. 

Refunding Bonds 
Consolidated Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002-B
–– To refund $27,415,000 of Consolidated Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 1993 and $19,385,000 of Consolidated Revenue Bonds, 
Series 1993-A.

–– Issued 11-1-2002.

–– $45,425,000; all bonds authorized have been issued.

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Designated tuition and 
various other revenues and balances that may be legally 
available for payment of debt obligations.

–– Average rate of bonds refunded - 5.4% (1993) and 5.5% (1993-A).

–– Net proceeds from refunding series - $47,871,000, after receipt 
of bond premium of $2,888,998 and payment of $442,998 in 
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs.

–– Funds were used to purchase state and local government 
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securities which were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an 
escrow agent to provide for all future debt payments on the 
1993 and 1993-A series bonds, when the bonds were called for 
early redemption on 2-15-03.

–– The 1993 and 1993-A series bonds are considered fully defeased 
and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the 
Investment in Plant fund group.

–– Refunding of the 1993 and 1993-A series bonds reduced the 
System’s debt service payments over the life of the bond issues by 
approximately $3,228,503.

–– Economic gain - $2,733,595; the difference between the net 
present value of the old and new debt service payment.

Consolidated Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003
–– To refund $15,975,000 of Consolidated Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 1995 (UH).

–– Issued 12-01-2003.

–– $16,490,000; all bonds authorized have been issued.

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Tuition and various other 
revenues and balances that may be legally available for payment 
of debt obligations (funding for fiscal year 2011 from legislative 
appropriation - Tuition Revenue Bonds).

–– Average rate of bonds refunded: 5.92%.

–– Net proceeds from refunding series: $17,419,961.18 after receipt 
of bond premium of $896,716 and payment of $266,453 in 
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs.

–– Funds were used to purchase state and local government 
securities which were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an 
escrow agent to provide for all future debt payments on the 1995 
series bonds, when the bonds were called for early redemption  
on 2-15-2005.

–– The 1995 series bonds are considered fully defeased and the 
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liability for those bonds has been removed from the Investment in 
Plant fund group.

–– Refunding of the 1995 series bonds reduced the System’s 
debt service payments over the life of the bond issues by 
approximately $1,377,275.

–– Economic gain: $1,292,003; the difference between the net 
present value of the old and new debt service payment.

Consolidated Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2006
–– To refund $3,295,000 of Consolidated Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 1997 (UHV) and $44,430,000 of Consolidated Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2000 (UH).

–– Issued 2-1-2006.

–– $48,450,000; all bonds authorized have been issued.

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Designated tuition and 
various other fees, revenues and balances that may be legally 
available for payment of debt obligations. (Funding for fiscal 
year 2012 partially from Legislative appropriation - Tuition 
Revenue Bonds).

–– Average rate of bonds refunded: 5.45% (1997) and 5.45% (2000).

–– Net proceeds from refunding series: $49,799,345, after receipt 
of bond premium of $1,823,210 and payment of $473,865 in 
underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs.

–– Funds were used to purchase state and local government 
securities which were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an 
escrow agent to provide for all future debt payments on the 1997 
and 2000 series bonds. The 2000 series bonds was called for early 
redemption on 2-15-2010.

–– The 1997 series bonds maturing subsequent to 8-15-2007 and 
the 2000 series bonds maturing subsequent to 2-15-2010 are 
considered fully defeased and the liability for those bonds has 
been removed from the Investment in Plant Fund Group.

–– Refunding of the 1997 and 2000 series bonds reduced the 
System’s debt service payments over the life of the bond issues by 
approximately $4,841,586.

–– Economic gain: $3,013,573; the difference between the net 
present value of the old and new debt service payment.

Consolidated Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008
–– To (a) refund and defease certain outstanding commercial paper 
notes of the System. And (b) finance the acquisition, purchase, 
improvement, enlargement and equipping of property, buildings, 
structures, activities, services, operations and other facilities, roads 
or related infrastructure for or on behalf of the System, including 
individual campuses of the System.

–– In addition to the defeasement of certain commercial 
paper noted above, the proceeds were used to finance the 
construction of Calhoun Lofts, East Parking Garage part 1, 
MacGregor land purchase (all UH), the Allied Health Facility, The 
regional Center for Economic Development, and Building 2, 
Sugarland (all UHV).

–– Issued 7-1-2008.

–– $175,030,000; all bonds authorized have been issued.

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Designated tuition and 
various other revenues and balances that may be legally available 
for payment of debt obligations (funding for fiscal 2011 partially 
from legislative appropriation - Tuition Revenue Bonds).

Consolidated Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 
–– To (a) defease certain outstanding commercial paper notes 
of the System and (b) finance the acquisition, purchase, 
construction, improvement, enlargement and equipping of 
property, buildings, structures, activities, services, operation  
and other facilities, roads or infrastructure related for or on behalf 
of the System, including individual campuses of the System.

–– In addition to the defeasement of certain commercial paper 
noted above, the proceeds were used to finance the Science 
Lab renovations, the purchase of Bayou Oaks, the construction 
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of the Stadium Parking Garage Part 1, the East Garage Part 2 (all 
UH) and the renovation of the Arbor Building (UHCL).

–– Issued 2-4-2009.

–– $108,395,000; all bonds authorized have been issued: 
$98,230,000 (UH) and $10,165,000 (UHCL).

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Designated tuition and 
various other fees, revenues and balances that may be legally 
available for payment of debt obligations. (Funding for fiscal 
year 2012 partially from Legislative appropriation - Tuition 
Revenue Bonds).

Consolidated Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2009-A
–– To (a) refund and defease $20,515,000 of outstanding 
Consolidated Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 and (b) finance the 
acquisition, purchase, construction, improvement, enlargement 
and equipping of property, buildings, structures, activities, 
services operation and other facilities, roads or infrastructure 
related for or on behalf of the System, including individual 
campuses of the System.

–– In addition to the defeasement of the bonds noted above, the 
proceeds were used to finance the construction of Cougar Village 
Part 1 (UH).

–– Issued 7-2-2009.

–– $71,175,000; all bonds authorized have been issued:  
$52,200,000 Revenue Bonds (UH); and $18,975,000 Refunding 
Bonds – (UH), $6,829,103, (UHD) $4,267,478 and (UHV) $7,878,420.

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Designated tuition  
and various other fees, revenues and balances that may be 
legally available for payment of debt obligations. (Funding 
for fiscal 2012 partially from Legislative appropriation - Tuition 
Revenue Bonds).

–– Average interest rate of bonds refunded: 4.885%.

–– Net proceeds from refunding series: $20,892,800, after receipt  
of $1,719,639 and additional available funds of $377,641  

Stella R. Porter
Future Actor



35
and payment of $179,479 in underwriting fees, insurance and 
other issuance costs.

–– Sufficient funds were deposited with an escrow agent to provide 
for full payment of all outstanding obligations related to the 1999 
series bonds after they were called for early redemption.  

–– The 1999 series bonds maturing subsequent to 2-15-2009 are 
considered fully defeased and the obligation for these bonds 
has been removed from the reported liabilities of the System.

–– Refunding the 1999 series bonds reduced the System’s 
debt service payments over the life of the bond issues by 
approximately $2,023,239.

–– Economic gain: $1,174,552; the difference between the net 
present value of the old and new debt service payment.

Consolidated Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2010-A
–– To (a) defease certain outstanding commercial paper notes 
of the System and (b) finance the acquisition, purchase, 
construction, improvement, enlargement, and equipping of 
property, buildings, structures, activities, services, operations and 
other facilities, roads, or related infrastructure for or on behalf  
of the System, including individual campuses of the System. 

–– In addition to the defeasement of certain commercial paper 
noted above proceeds were used to finance construction costs 
related to the UH Moody Towers Dining Hall and facilities  
at the UH Energy Research Park.

–– Issued 4-15-2010.

–– $23,305,000; all bonds authorized have been issued (UH).

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Designated tuition and 
various other fees, revenues and balances that may  
be legally available for payment of debt obligations. 

Consolidated Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2010-B 
–– To (a) defease certain outstanding commercial paper notes 
of the System and (b) finance the acquisition, purchase, 
construction, improvement, enlargement, and equipping of 
property, buildings, structures, activities, services, operations  

and other facilities, roads, or related infrastructure for or on behalf 
of the System, including individual campuses of the System. 

–– In addition to the defeasement of certain commercial paper 
noted above proceeds were used to finance construction costs 
related to the Moody Towers Dining Hall, the Health and Medical 
Sciences Building, a classroom/business building, Stadium Parking 
Garage 1, and facilities at the UH Energy Research Park (all UH) 
and Jaguar Residence Hall (UHV). 

–– This bond issue is a qualified Build America Bond (BAB) as defined 
within Sections 54AA and 6431 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended.

–– Issued 4-15-2010.

–– $79,975,000; all bonds authorized have been issued: 74,626,469 
(UH) and $5,288,531 (UHV).

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Designated tuition and 
various other fees, revenues and balances that may be legally 
available for payment of debt obligations. The System will receive  
interest subsidy payments from the U.S. Treasury equal to 35 
percent of the interest payable on related qualified Build America 
Bonds contemporaneously with the interest payment dates of the  
qualified Build America Bonds.

Consolidated Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2010-C 
–– To (a) defease certain outstanding commercial paper notes 
of the System and (b) finance the acquisition, purchase, 
construction, improvement, enlargement, and equipping of 
property, buildings, structures, activities, services, operations 
and other facilities, roads, or related infrastructure for or on 
behalf of the System, including individual campuses  
of the System. 

–– In addition to the defeasement of certain commercial paper 
noted above proceeds were used to finance construction 
costs related to the Moody Towers Dining Hall, various science 
buildings, a classroom/business building, Stadium Parking 
Garage 2, facilities at the UH Energy Research Park (all UH) and 
for construction costs related to Jaguar Residence Hall (UHV).

–– Issued 4-15-2010. 
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–– $18,255,000; all bonds authorized have been issued $16,698,745 
(UH) and $1,556,255 (UHV).

–– Source of revenue for debt service Designated tuition and various 
other fees, revenues and balances that may be legally available 
for payment of debt obligations.

Consolidated Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2011-A 
–– To (a) refund and defease $78,195,000 of outstanding 
Consolidated Revenue Bonds, Series 2002-A and $9,255,000  
of Consolidated Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2002-B and  
(b) finance the acquisition, purchase, construction, improvement, 
enlargement and equipping of property, buildings, structures, 
activities, services, operation and other facilities,  
roads or related infrastructure for and on behalf of the System, 
including individual campuses of the System.

–– In addition to the defeasement of the bonds noted above, the 
proceeds were used to finance the acquisition, construction or 
renovation of the University Center, Quadrangle, Moody Towers, 
Cougar Place, Cougar Village 2, Radio Station, Parking Garage 
1A and various buildings at UH Energy Research Park (UH) and 
Residential Housing (UHV).

–– Issued 12-29-2011.

–– $265,500,000; all bonds authorized have been issued: 
$75,640,000 Refunding Bonds: (UH) $35,921,188, (UHCL) 
$18,691,901, (UHD) $9,487,589, and (UHV) $11,539,322; and 
$189,860,000 Revenue Bonds: (UH) 179,785,000 and (UHV) 
$10,075,000.

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Tuition and various other fees, 
revenues and balances that may be legally available for payment 
of debt obligation. (Funding for fiscal year 2012 partially from 
Legislative appropriation – Tuition Revenues Bonds).

–– Average interest rate of bonds refunded – 4.464013%.

–– Net proceeds from refunding series - $89,366,528 after receipt 
of bond premium of $12,525,317 additional available funds 
of $1,427,621 and payment of $226,410 of underwriting fees, 
insurance and other issuance costs. 

–– Sufficient funds were deposited with an escrow agent to provide 
for full payment of all outstanding obligations related to the  
2002-A and 2002-B series after they were called for early 
redemption on 2-15-2012.

–– The 2002–A and 2002–B series bonds maturing subsequent to 
02-15-2012 are considered fully defeased and the obligation for 
those bonds has been removed from the reported liabilities of  
the System.

–– Refunding of the 2002-A and the 2002–B series bonds reduced the 
System’s debt service payments over the life of the bond  
issues by approximately $12,683,167.

–– Economic gain: $11,417,870; the difference between the net 
present value of the old and the new debt service payments.

Consolidated Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2011-B 
–– To (a) defease certain outstanding commercial paper notes of the 
System and (b) finance the acquisition, purchase, construction, 
improvement, enlargement and equipping of property, buildings, 
structures, activities, services, operation and other facilities, roads 
or related infrastructure for and on behalf of the System, including 
individual campuses of the System.

–– In addition to the defeasement of the commercial paper notes 
above, the proceeds were used to finance construction costs for 
the West Dining Hall and renovation of the University Center (UH).

–– Issued 12-29-2011.

–– $21,310,000; all bonds authorized have been issued.

–– Source of revenue for debt service – Designated tuition and 
various other fees, revenues and balances that may be legally 
available for payment of debt obligations.

Pledged Future Revenues
GASB Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Future Revenues and 
Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues, makes a basic 
distinction between sales of receivables and future revenues on  
the one hand, and the pledging of future revenues to repay  
borrowing (collateralized borrowing) on the other. In the fiscal year 
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ended August 31, 2012 the pledged revenue from business  
type activities required for future principal and interest on  
existing bonds was $1,322,258,226. Term of commitment was  
August 31, 2043. The percentage of revenue pledged is 100%. 
Current year pledged revenue is $737,897,859. Current year  
principal and interest paid is $153,164,596. 

Build America Bonds
Build America Bonds (BABs) were created as part of the federal 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA).  
Taxable bonds may be issued by government entities, including 
state agencies and state universities, as Tax Credit BABs or Direct 
Payment BABs. Tax Credit BABs provide a federal tax credit to 
investors equal to 35 percent of the interest received from the bond 
issuer. Direct Payment BABs provide a direct federal reimbursement 
to state and local governmental issuers equal to 35 percent of the 
interest paid on the bonds.

During the 2010 fiscal year the University of Houston issued 
$79,975,000 of Consolidated Revenue and Refunding Bonds,  
Series 2010-B taxable revenue bonds under the Direct Payment  
BABs program. A balance of $79,975,000 remained outstanding  
at fiscal 2012 year end. No Tax Credit BABs were issued.

B. Changes In Bonded Indebtedness
Bonds payable are due in annual installments varying from 
$6,049,750 to $73,810,429 with interest rates from 2.00% to  
6.31%, and the final installment due 2-15-43.

C. Future Debt Service Requirements
Principal and interest requirements on the obligations for the  
next five years were $366,545,484 and $955,712,742 for all  
years beyond. 

LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
Included in expenditures reported in the financial statements for  
rent paid or due under operating leases is $6,430,094. Future 
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minimum lease rental payments under non-cancelable operating 
leases having an initial term in excess of one year, as of August 31, 
2012, totaled $15,914,482.

The System has entered into a long term capital lease for the 
purchase of a certain capital asset. Such leases are classified as  
capital leases for accounting purposes and are recorded at the 
present value of the future minimum lease payments at the  
inception of the lease. The original cost of the asset is $7,769,870. 
Accumulated depreciation is $763,052 for a total capitalized lease 
value of $7,006,818.

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLANS
The State has joint contributory retirement plans for substantially all 
its employees. The System participates in the plans administered by 
the Teachers Retirement System of Texas. Future pension costs are 
the liabilities of the Retirement System. The Retirement System does 
not account for each state agency separately. Annual financial 
reports prepared by the Retirement System include audited financial 
statements and actuarial assumptions and conclusions. The 
contributions made by plan members for 2012 were $16,391,761. 
System contributions were $15,396,067.

The state has also established an Optional Retirement Program 
for institutions of higher education. Participation in the Optional 
Retirement Program is available to certain eligible employees and 
is in lieu of participation in the Teacher Retirement System. The 
Optional Retirement Program provides for the purchase of annuity  
or mutual fund contracts. 

The contributions made by plan members for 2012 were 
$14,130,112. System contributions were $14,839,568. Since these 
are individual investment product contracts, the state has no 
additional or unfunded liability for this program.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION  
State employees may elect to defer a portion of their earnings for 
income tax and investment purposes pursuant to authority granted  
in the Texas Government Code Annotated, Section 609.001.  

Two plans are available for employees’ deferred compensation 
plans. Both plans are administered by the Employees  
Retirement System.

The State’s 457 plan complies with the Internal Revenue Code 
Section 457. The State also administers another plan, “TexaSaver,” 
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Sec. 401(k). 
The assets of this plan do not belong to the state. The state has no 
liability related to this plan.

The tax deferred investment program permits benefits-eligible 
employees of the University of Houston System to purchase qualified 
tax deferred investments with a portion of their salaries. Participation 
in the program is voluntary and is a supplement to the Teacher 
Retirement System or the Optional Retirement Program. It is however, 
separate and apart from either.

INTERFUND BALANCES
There are numerous transactions between funds and state 
agencies. At year-end, amounts to be received or paid are 
reported as (1) Interfund Receivables or Payables, (2) Due From 
or Due To Other Agencies, (3) Due From or Due To Other Funds, 
(4) Transfers In or Transfers Out, and (5) Legislative Transfers In or 
Legislative Transfers Out.

The System experienced routine transfers with other state agencies, 
which were consistent with the activities of the fund making the 
transfer. Repayment of interfund balances will occur within one year 
from the date of the financial statement.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Various lawsuits and claims involving the System were pending. While 
the ultimate liability, if any, remains uncertain, management does 
not expect any possible adverse ruling to have a material effect on 
System accounts.

The System has received several federal grants for specific purposes 
that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies.  
Such audits could lead to a request for reimbursements to grantor 
agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the 
grant. Based on prior experience, management believes such 
disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.  
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CONTINUANCE SUBJECT TO REVIEW 
The System is not subject to the provisions of the Texas Sunset Act 
(Chapter 325, Texas Government Code Annotated). The Act provides 
for the regular assessment of the continuing need for state agencies 
to exist. Certain agencies, such as institutions of higher education 
and courts, are not subject to the Sunset Act.

RESTATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
During fiscal year 2012, a restatement of the prior year ’s net 
assets/fund equity was required. The restatements represent prior  
period adjustments to beginning net assets related to capital 
assets and accumulated depreciation and amortization changes.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
No events occurred between August 31, 2012 and the statement 
completion date that materially affect the financial condition of  
the System.

RISK FINANCING AND RELATED Issuance
The University of Houston System is exposed to a variety of civil  
claims resulting from the performance of its duties. It is System  
policy to periodically assess the proper combination of  
commercial insurance and retention of risk to cover losses to  
which it may be exposed.

The System assumes substantially all risks associated with tort and 
liability claims due to the performance of its duties. Currently some 
commercial insurance is purchased, and the System is not involved 
in any risk pools with other government entities.

The System’s liabilities are reported when it is both probable that a 
loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably 
estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been 
incurred but not reported. Liabilities are reevaluated periodically to 
consider current settlements, frequency of claims, past experience 
and economic factors.

RELATED PARTIES
The System is an agency of the State of Texas. While it is affiliated 
with several separate legal entities, these organizations are not 
considered component units as defined by generally accepted 

accounting principles. The System has no affiliations classified as 
related organizations, joint ventures or jointly governed organizations.

Several student housing facility projects have been constructed 
by private external entities in order to enhance the residential life 
experience of students at various System campuses. These facilities 
are operated under ground leases and management agreements 
with the System for extended time periods. Under the terms of the 
agreements, cash revenues from rental income, net of operating 
expenses,are shared with the System. If cash revenues do not attain 
certain contractually defined thresholds, the University is liable to 
the external management for the deficiency. During the 2011 and 
2012 fiscal years net cash flows were sufficiently adequate so as not 
to generate a liability payment. System management believes that 
current financial and occupancy performance indicates that future 
years net cash flows will be sufficient and that future contingent 
liabilities will not occur. Repayment of project financing is serviced 
from revenues generated by the housing projects, and is the sole 
responsibility of the external entity. The related loans and bonds are 
not liabilities of the System or component universities. American 
Campus Communities operates the Cullen Oaks facility at the 
University of Houston. Century Development operates the Cambridge 
Oaks facility at the University of Houston and the University Forest 
facility at the University of Houston – Clear Lake.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
The System has no segment activity that requires separate 
disclosure in the notes to the financial statements. A segment is 
an identifiable activity, or group of activities, reported as or within 
an enterprise fund or any other stand-alone entity that has one or 
more bonds or other debt instruments outstanding, with a revenue 
stream pledged in support of that debt. In addition, the activity ’s 
revenues, expenses, gains and losses, assets, and liabilities are 
required to be accounted for separately. 

EXTRAORDINARY AND SPECIAL ITEMS
No items have been identified which should have been 
presented in the financial statements.
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University of Houston - Statement of net assets 
As of August 31, 2012

Assets		  2012		  2011

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents	 $	 76,280,258  	 $	 95,106,147 
Short-term Investments		  17,878,881  		  1,664,863 
 Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents		  52,829,874  		  (3,216,383)
Loans and Contracts 		  10,403,141		  2,690,518
Legislative Appropriations		  63,704,988  		  70,732,652 
Receivables		  193,631,260  		  222,847,396 
Inventories		  1,985,639  		  2,047,838 
Prepaid Items		  20,049,617  		  21,749,047	

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS	 $	 436,763,658  	 $	 413,622,076 

Non-Current Assets
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents	 $	 145,363,482   	 $	 112,170,554  
Loans and Other Receivables		  609,091,213   		  452,433,450  
Investments		  442,550  		  327,739 
Capital Assets, Non-Depreciable, 		
	     Non-Amortizable		  234,084,815   		  243,079,411  
Capital Assets, Depreciable, 
     Amortizable		 1,306,364,199   		  1,126,301,949  
Accumulated Amortization/Depreciation		  (713,251,914) 		  (661,648,108)
Deferred Charges		  39,773,010 		  14,333,841 

TOTAL Non-current ASSETS	 $	1,621,867,355  	 $	1,286,998,836  

TOTAL ASSETS	 $	2,058,631,013  	 $	1,700,620,912 

Liabilities		  2012		  2011					

Current Liabilities
Payables	 $	 76,054,651 	 $	 68,180,214 
Unearned Revenues		  130,223,530 		  128,873,750 
Employees’ Compensable Leave		  8,495,337		  8,568,738
Revenue Bonds Payable		  25,495,828	  	 19,565,529		 
Claims and Judgments Payable 		  246,445		  174,446
Funds Held for Others		  8,739,408 		  8,956,747 

TOTAL Current Liabilities	 $	 249,255,199 	 $	 234,319,424 

Non-Current Liabilities
Employee’s Compensable Leave		  9,049,762 		  9,308,872 
Revenue Bonds Payable		  717,625,942		  523,918,717
Claims and Judgements Payable		  1,474 		  9,344 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities	 $	 726,677,178 	 $	 533,236,933 

Total Liabilities	 $	 975,932,377 	 $	 767,556,357 

Net Assets				  

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt	 $	 315,614,471 	 $	 271,953,185 
Restricted, Debt Retirement		  43,289,780 		  13,882,409 
Restricted, Capital Projects		  1,899,116 		  5,642,200 
Restricted, Endowment Funds 		  323,506,581		  287,206,810
Restricted, Other		  142,562,812 		  106,573,484 
Unrestricted		  255,825,876 		  247,806,467 

Total Net Assets	 $	1,082,698,636 	 $	 933,064,555 

Financial statements
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University of Houston - Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
As of August 31, 2012

Operating Revenues		  2012	 2011

Tuition and Fees, Net of Discounts	 $	 325,389,562   	 $	 282,533,753  
Sales of Goods and Services		  94,548,985   		  88,111,828  
Federal Revenue		  61,501,277   		  59,306,883 
State Grant Revenue		  41,765,938   		  37,761,519  
Other Grants and Contracts		  18,978,839   		  18,269,822 

 
Total Operating Revenues	 $	 542,184,601   	 $	 485,983,805  

Operating Expenses 

Instruction	 $	 198,130,744    	 $	 194,374,819  
Research		  92,779,251    		  93,756,014  
Public Service		  39,421,973   		  39,125,318 
Academic Support		  129,279,558   		  121,434,691 
Student Services		  24,914,261   		  23,827,047
Institutional Support		  59,247,275  		  57,095,308 
Operation and Maintenance of Plant		  36,727,412  		  35,586,377 
Scholarships and Fellowships		  30,484,982 		  48,516,854
Auxiliary Enterprises		  77,944,016 		  76,811,103
Depreciation and Amortization		  56,455,700 		  46,721,702

Total Operating Expenses	 $	 745,385,172   	 $	 737,249,233  

Operating Income (Loss)	 $	(203,200,571) 	 $	 (251,265,428	)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)		  2012	 2011

Legislative Revenue	 $	 160,374,820 	 $	 181,506,873 
Gifts			   75,988,604 		  79,797,057 
Federal Revenue Non Operating 		  36,054,129 		  73,835,722
Investment Income		  10,846,370		  23,549,060
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges		  (31,402,706)		  (25,617,831	)
Net Incr (Decr) in Fair Value of Investments 		  32,438,719		  1,927,312
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)		  5,787,513 		  (30,453,231	) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)	 $	 290,087,449 	 $	  304,544,962

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues,  
Expenses, Gains, Losses and Transfers	 $	 86,886,878	 $	 53,279,534

Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains, Losses AND Transfers		

Capital Appropriation 
     (Higher Education Assistance Funds)	 $	 35,885,768 	 $	 35,885,768 
Additions to Permanent and 		
	     Term Endowments	  	 7,802,308	  	 12,824,750
Intercomponent Transfers		  16,080,390		  2,750,257
Transfers In		  7,877,932 		   
Transfers Out		  (4,818,292)		  (4,295,716	)
Legislative Transfers 				    28,883
Legislative Appropriations Lapsed				    (11,609	)

Total Other Revenues, Expenses, 
Gains, Losses and Transfers	 $	 62,828,106 	 $	  47,182,333 

Change In Net Assets	 $	 149,714,984 		  100,461,867	

Net Assets Beginning	 $	 933,064,555 	 $	  832,798,682
Restatements		  (80,903)		  (195,994	)

Net Assets Beginning, as Restated	 $	 932,983,652	 $	  832,602,688
 
Net Assets, Ending	 $	1,082,698,636		  933,064,555

Financial statements
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University of Houston - statement of cash flows  
As of August 31, 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities		  2012	 2011

Proceeds Received from Students  
     and Customers	 $	 353,294,182    	 $	 320,455,884    
Proceeds from Loan Programs		  137,966,391    		  170,760,244    
Proceeds from Other Revenues		  219,799,107    		  150,293,781 
Payments to Suppliers for Goods  
     and Services		  (162,837,282)  		  (166,659,331)
Payments to Employees		  (453,549,656)		  (450,970,243)
Payments for Loans Provided		  (145,447,048)		  (161,238,845)
Payments for Other Expenses		  (56,858,208)  		  (69,242,519) 

 
Net Cash Provided (Used) 
By Operating Activities	 $	(107,632,514)  	 $	 (206,601,029) 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Proceeds from State Appropriations	 $	 167,403,772     	 $	 191,400,688    
Proceeds from Gifts		  50,793,154     		  80,516,585    
Proceeds from Endowments		  7,802,308    		  12,824,750  
Proceeds of Transfers from Other Funds		  30,060,683    		  12,884,481   
Proceeds from Other Revenues		  36,054,129    		  73,835,722   
Payments for Other Uses		  (8,955,217)		  (11,249,875)

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital  
Financing Activities	 $	 283,158,829    	 $	 360,212,351   

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities		

Proceeds from Capital Financing Activities	 $	 315,373,538    	 $	 101,731,032    
Payments for Additions to Capital Assets		  (176,000,452)  		  (141,549,751)
Payments of Principal and Interest  
	     on Debt Issuance		  (229,292,727)		  (76,698,528)

 
Net Cash Used by Capital and  
Related Financing Activities 	 $	 (89,919,641)  	 $	 (116,517,247)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities		  2012	 2011

Proceeds from Interest and Investment Income	 $	 10,846,370   	 $	 25,916,764   
Payments to Acquire Investments		  (26,039,748) 		  (23,290,075)

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities	 $	 (15,193,378) 	 $	 2,626,689   

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and  
	     Cash Equivalents		  70,413,296  		  39,720,764  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 1	 $	 204,060,317   	 $	 164,339,553   

Cash and Cash Equivalents, August 31	 $	 274,473,613 	 $	 204,060,317 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
     Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss)	 $	(203,200,571)	 $	 (251,265,428)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
     Provided (Used) by Operating Activities				  

Amortization and Depreciation	 $	 56,455,700   	 $	 46,721,702   
Classification Differences		  (7,480,657) 		  9,521,398 
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables  
     and Loans		  37,334,330   		  (18,462,692)
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories		  62,200  		  130,086  
(Increase) Decrease in Other Assets		  (7,772,647)		  (2,008,552)
Increase (Decrease) in Payables		  13,834,893 		  (1,336,452)
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses		  1,699,430 		  2,351,457  
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Income		  1,349,780 		  5,206,171  
Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities		  85,028 		  2,541,281 

 
Total Adjustments	 $	 95,568,057   	 $	 44,664,399   
 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	$	(107,632,514)	 $	 (206,601,029)

Financial statements
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Financial statements

University of Houston - matrix of operating expenses 
As of August 31, 2012

Expenses by Natural Classification		  2012	 2011

Cost of Goods Sold	 $	 2,462,348   	 $	 2,513,645 
Salaries and Wages		  372,111,097   		  371,577,176  
Payroll Related Costs		  82,938,665   		  81,891,077  
Professional Fees and Services		  44,349,455   		  37,031,070   
Federal Pass-Through Expenses		  2,500,925 		  2,805,689 
State Pass-Through Expenses		  303,635 		  192,677 
Travel			   11,662,663 		  10,362,566 
Materials and Supplies		  28,266,402 		  27,042,155 
Communication and Utilities		  38,455,129 		  37,569,432 
Repairs and Maintenance		  9,700,545 		  9,504,195 
Rentals and Leases		  20,832,134 		  18,216,005 
Printing and Reproduction		  3,351,117 		  3,561,064 
Depreciation and Amortization		  56,455,700 		  46,721,702 
Interest		  39,016 		  41,911 
Scholarships		  41,813,429 		  55,769,138 
Claims and Losses		  1,159,316 		  1,156,754 
Other Operating Expenses		  28,983,596   		  31,292,977   

Total Operating Expenses	 $	 745,385,172  	 $	 737,249,233   

Expenses by Functional Classification		  2012	 2011

Instruction	 $	 198,130,744  	 $	 194,374,819  
Research		  92,779,251  		  93,756,014  
Public Service		  39,421,973  		  39,125,318  
Academic Support		  129,279,558 		  121,434,691 
Student Services		  24,914,261  		  23,827,047  
Institutional Support 		  59,247,275 		  57,095,308 
Physical Plant 		  36,727,412 		  35,586,377 
Scholarships and Fellowships		  30,484,982 		  48,516,854 
Auxiliary Enterprises		  77,944,016 		  76,811,103 
Depreciation and Amortization		  56,455,700  		  46,721,702  

Total Expenses by Expenditure Function	 $	 745,385,172  	 $	 737,249,233  
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University of Houston Clear Lake - Statement of net assets 
As of August 31, 2012

Assets		  2012	 2011

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents	 $	 22,821,782   	 $	 27,311,252  
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents		  (2,934,868)  		  (2,655,213)
Loans and Contracts 		  1,494,500 		  2,384,151
Legislative Appropriations		  4,948,005   		  5,757,418  
Receivables		  26,990,003   		  24,557,981  
Inventories		  17,184   		  15,454  
Prepaid Items		  2,087,357   		  1,982,172 	

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS	 $	 55,423,963   	 $	 59,353,215  

Non-Current Assets
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents	 $	 1,072,699    	 $	 850,123   
Loans and Other Receivables		  23,587,570    		  24,308,768   
Capital Assets, Non-Depreciable, 		
	     Non-Amortizable		  11,449,339    		  23,230,236   
Capital Assets, Depreciable, 
     Amortizable		  151,909,606    		  134,885,217   
Accumulated Amortization/Depreciation		  (89,203,307) 		  (85,884,020)
Deferred Charges		  3,317,589  		  526,759  

TOTAL Non-current ASSETS	 $	 102,133,496   	 $	 97,917,083   

TOTAL ASSETS	 $	 157,557,459   	 $	 157,270,298  

Liabilities		  2012	 2011

Current Liabilities
Payables	 $	 4,866,797  	 $	 5,566,248  
Unearned Revenues		  22,698,789  		  22,247,438  
Capital Lease Obligations		  374,630		  366,160
Claims and Judgements Payable		  27,462		  20,331
Employees’ Compensable Leave		  965,961 		  1,000,192 
Revenue Bonds Payable		  2,207,199 	  	 2,059,858 		 
Funds Held for Others		  339,410  		  365,866  

TOTAL Current Liabilities	 $	 31,480,248  	 $	 31,626,093  

Non-Current Liabilities
Claims and Judgements Payable 		  2,227		  1,604
Employee’s Compensable Leave		  1,029,002  		  1,086,584  
Revenue Bonds Payable		  28,222,290 		  30,356,901 
Capital Lease Obligations		  6,632,188  		  7,006,818  

Total Noncurrent Liabilities	 $	 35,885,707  	 $	 38,451,907  

Total Liabilities	 $	 67,365,955  	 $	 70,078,000  

Net Assets				  

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt	 $	 40,176,389  	 $	 34,927,094  
Restricted, Debt Retirement		  3,317,589  		  526,759  
Restricted, Endowment Funds 		  13,155,369 		  11,732,239 
Restricted, Other		  1,920,172  		  2,544,321  
Unrestricted		  31,621,985  		  37,461,885  

Total Net Assets	 $	 90,191,504  	 $	 87,192,298  

Financial statements
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University of Houston Clear Lake - Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
As of August 31, 2012

Operating Revenues		  2012	 2011

Tuition and Fees, Net of Discounts	 $	 43,503,636   	 $	 40,958,965  
Sales of Goods and Services		  2,608,974   		  2,740,279  
Federal Revenue		  2,778,689   		  2,641,762 
State Grant Revenue		   1,812,851  		  1,923,960  
Other Grants and Contracts		  498,413   		   287,181

 
Total Operating Revenues	 $	 51,202,563   	 $	   48,552,147

Operating Expenses 

Instruction	 $	    36,789,198 	 $	 36,686,822  
Research		  1,769,700    		  1,746,646  
Public Service		  113,471   		  194,238 
Academic Support		  12,041,362   		  11,442,015 
Student Services		  4,371,914   		  3,853,655
Institutional Support		  14,584,606  		  15,122,620 
Operation and Maintenance of Plant		  7,342,126  		  7,457,039 
Scholarships and Fellowships		  7,776,537 		  8,295,509
Auxiliary Enterprises		  5,089,831 		  4,819,317
Depreciation and Amortization		  4,780,625 		  4,640,140

Total Operating Expenses	 $	 94,659,370   	 $	 94,258,001  

Operating Income (Loss)	 $	 (43,456,807) 	 $	 (45,705,854)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)		  2012	 2011

Legislative Revenue	 $	  29,158,396	 $	 35,212,454 
Gifts			    411,124		  1,169,644 
Federal Revenue Non Operating
     (PR-OP Grants/Contributions) 		  8,494,969 		  10,404,859
Investment Income		  946,175		  1,707,498
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges		  (1,615,553)		  (1,388,439)
Net Incr (Decr) in Fair Value of Investments 		  1,722,673		  301,258
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)		  2,306,138 		  4,368,263 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)	 $	 41,423,922 	 $	 51,775,537	 

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues,  
Expenses, Gains, Losses and Transfers	 $	 (2,032,885)	 $	 6,069,683

Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains, Losses AND Transfers		

Capital Appropriation 
     (Higher Education Assistance Funds)	 $	  5,214,167	 $	 5,214,167 
Additions to Permanent and 
	     Term Endowments		  160,591 		  238,355 
Intercomponent Transfers		  181,841		  1,560
Transfers Out		  (524,051)		  (172,292)
Legislative Transfers 				    (28,883)
Legislative Appropriations Lapsed		  (457)		  (7,082)

Total Other Revenues, Expenses, 
Gains, Losses and Transfers	 $	  5,032,091	 $	 5,245,825  

Change In Net Assets	 $	 2,999,206 	 $	 11,315,508	

Net Assets Beginning	 $	  87,192,298	 $	 75,876,790 
Restatements				  

 
Net Assets, Ending	 $	 90,191,504		  87,192,298

Financial statements
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University of Houston clear lake - statement of cash flows  
As of August 31, 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities		  2012	 2011

Proceeds Received from Students  
     and Customers	 $	 42,949,051     	 $	 42,405,229     
Proceeds from Loan Programs		  5,102,926     		  3,639,110     
Proceeds from Other Revenues		  6,453,626     		  6,496,116  
Payments to Suppliers for Goods  
     and Services		  (17,911,883)  		  (15,534,843)
Payments to Employees		  (62,699,953)		  (62,213,487)
Payments for Loans Provided		  (4,203,211)		  (3,776,420)

Payments for Other Expenses		  (10,244,500)  		  (10,472,834) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) 
By Operating Activities	 $	 (40,553,944)  	 $	 (39,457,129)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Proceeds from State Appropriations	 $	 29,967,352      	 $	 35,097,082     
Proceeds from Gifts		  655,146      		  1,047,917     
Proceeds from Endowments		  160,591     		  238,355   
Proceeds of Transfers from Other Funds		  3,326,075     		      
Proceeds from Other Revenues		  8,494,969     		  21,278,027    
Payments for Other Uses		  (3,444,755)		  (523,992)

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital  
Financing Activities	 $	 39,159,378     	 $	 57,137,389    

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities		

Proceeds from Capital Financing Activities	 $	 10,127,556     	 $	 5,214,167     
Payments for Additions to Capital Assets		  (6,704,830)  		  (13,573,474)
Payments for Capital Lease		  (366,160)		  (396,892)
Payments of Principal and Interest  
	     on Debt Issuance		  (6,393,652)		  (3,457,881)

 
Net Cash Used by Capital and  
Related Financing Activities 	 $	 (3,337,086)  	 $	 (12,214,080)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities		  2012	 2011

Proceeds from Interest and Investment Income	$	 946,175    	 $	 2,008,757    
Payments to Acquire Investments		  (761,072) 		

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities	 $	 185,103  	 $	 2,008,757 
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and  
	     Cash Equivalents		  (4,546,549)  		  7,474,937   
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 1	 $	 25,506,162    	 $	 18,031,225 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, August 31	 $	 20,959,613  	 $	 25,506,162  

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
     Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss)	 $	 (43,456,807)	 $	 (45,705,854)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
     Provided (Used) by Operating Activities				  

Amortization and Depreciation	 $	 4,780,625    	 $	 4,640,140    
Classification Differences		  899,715  		   
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables  
     and Loans		  (2,196,222)   		  (1,016,213)
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories		  (1,730)  		  (2,545)  
(Increase) Decrease in Other Assets		  (139,437)		  406,822 
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses		  (105,185) 		  142,093   
Increase (Decrease) in Payables		  (788,642) 		  1,191,260 
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Income		  451,351  		  879,448   
Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities		  2,388  		  7,720  

 
Total Adjustments	 $	 2,902,863    	 $	 6,248,725    
 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	$	 (40,553,944)	 $	 (39,457,129)

Financial statements
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University of Houston clear lake - matrix of operating expenses 
As of August 31, 2012

Expenses by Natural Classification		  2012	 2011

Cost of Goods Sold	 $	 2,830    	 $	 8,429  
Salaries and Wages		  50,181,595    		  50,134,796   
Payroll Related Costs		  12,222,998    		  12,397,313   
Professional Fees and Services		  5,793,827    		  5,350,966    
Travel			   656,488  		  610,834  
Materials and Supplies		  3,889,290  		  4,628,078  
Communication and Utilities		  3,034,296  		  3,090,617  
Repairs and Maintenance		  1,626,108  		  1,371,479  
Rentals and Leases		  770,138  		  548,904  
Printing and Reproduction		  333,724 		  362,453  
Depreciation and Amortization		  4,780,625  		  4,640,140  
Interest		  316,286  		  313,465  
Scholarships		  9,225,678  		  8,610,207  
Claims and Losses		  83,938  		  158,714  
Other Operating Expenses		  1,741,549    		  2,031,606    

Total Operating Expenses	 $	 94,659,370   	 $	 94,258,001    

Expenses by Functional Classification		  2012	 2011

Instruction	 $	 36,789,198   	 $	 36,686,822   
Research		  1,769,700   		  1,746,646   
Public Service		  113,471   		  194,238   
Academic Support		  12,041,362  		  11,442,015  
Student Services		  4,371,914   		  3,853,655   
Institutional Support 		  14,584,606  		  15,122,620  
Physical Plant 		  7,342,126  		  7,457,039  
Scholarships and Fellowships		  7,776,537  		  8,295,509  
Auxiliary Enterprises		  5,089,831  		  4,819,317  
Depreciation and Amortization		  4,780,625   		  4,640,140   

Total Expenses by Expenditure Function	 $	 94,659,370   	 $	 94,258,001   
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University of Houston downtown - Statement of net assets 
As of August 31, 2012

Assets		  2012	 2011

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents	 $	 43,686,124    	 $	 37,473,264   
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents		  (12,313,344)  		  (10,314,038)
Loans and Contracts 		  545,992  		  444,631 
Legislative Appropriations		  10,391,599    		  9,174,580   
Receivables		  29,157,428    		  28,254,824   
Inventories		  15,816    		  16,605   
Prepaid Items		  3,886,207    		  4,090,535  	

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS	 $	 75,369,822    	 $	 69,140,401   

Non-Current Assets
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents	 $	 1,119,576     	 $	 353,136    
Loans and Other Receivables		  25,623,575     		  24,050,875    
Investments		  178,206		  144,670
Capital Assets, Non-Depreciable, 		
	     Non-Amortizable		  14,016,592     		  11,529,717    
Capital Assets, Depreciable, 
     Amortizable		  168,300,070     		  166,016,598    
Accumulated Amortization/Depreciation		  (88,145,276) 		  (81,604,718)
Deferred Charges		  3,263,656   		  2,030,118   

TOTAL Non-current ASSETS	 $	 124,356,399    	 $	 122,520,396    

TOTAL ASSETS	 $	 199,726,221    	 $	 191,660,797   

Liabilities		  2012	 2011

Current Liabilities
Payables	 $	 9,424,763   	 $	 9,276,847   
Unearned Revenues		  23,548,320   		  21,551,053   
Claims and Judgements Payable		  31,673 		  107,278 
Employees’ Compensable Leave		  1,117,984  		  1,118,097  
Revenue Bonds Payable		  4,406,838  	  	 4,181,480  		 
Funds Held for Others		  (479,013)  		  (472,585)  

TOTAL Current Liabilities	 $	 38,050,565   	 $	 35,762,170   

Non-Current Liabilities
Claims and Judgements Payable 		  262 		  1,419 
Employee’s Compensable Leave		  1,190,946   		  1,214,673   
Revenue Bonds Payable		  47,561,857  		  51,931,854  

Total Noncurrent Liabilities	 $	 48,753,065   	 $	 53,147,946   

Total Liabilities	 $	 86,803,630   	 $	 88,910,116   

Net Assets				  

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt	 $	 45,428,349   	 $	 42,871,496   
Restricted, Debt Retirement		  3,242,776   		  2,008,789   
Restricted, Capital Projects		  45,417		  81,527
Restricted, Endowment Funds 		  18,441,319  		  16,514,319  
Restricted, Other		  3,962,675    		  4,143,286   
Unrestricted		  41,802,055    		  37,131,264   

Total Net Assets	 $	 112,922,591   	 $	 102,750,681   

Financial statements
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University of Houston downtown - Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
As of August 31, 2012

Operating Revenues		  2012	 2011

Tuition and Fees, Net of Discounts	 $	 56,633,160    	 $	 50,064,996   
Sales of Goods and Services		  6,278,114    		  5,025,016   
Federal Revenue		  3,719,287    		  3,430,452   
State Grant Revenue		   6,939,476   		  7,252,513   
Other Grants and Contracts		  317,612    		   204,455 

 
Total Operating Revenues	 $	 73,887,649    	 $	   65,977,432 

Operating Expenses 

Instruction	 $	    37,671,875  	 $	 38,301,509   
Research		  2,217,057     		  1,473,222   
Public Service		  4,256,532    		  3,784,092  
Academic Support		  16,794,912    		  17,423,558  
Student Services		  3,423,337    		  4,011,293 
Institutional Support		  15,933,770   		  15,356,050  
Operation and Maintenance of Plant		  6,189,453   		  5,831,035  
Scholarships and Fellowships		  31,251,119  		  32,677,308 
Auxiliary Enterprises		  6,906,403  		  6,713,483 
Depreciation and Amortization		  7,070,095  		  6,967,492 

Total Operating Expenses	 $	 131,714,553    	 $	 132,539,042  
 
Operating Income (Loss)	 $	 (57,826,904) 	 $	 (66,561,610)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)		  2012	 2011

Legislative Revenue	 $	  24,896,493 	 $	 33,901,987  
Gifts			    1,229,312 		  1,357,988  
Federal Revenue Non Operating		  27,362,174  		  31,234,059 
Investment Income		  785,172 		  1,924,613 
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges		  (2,608,029)		  (2,648,733)
Net Incr (Decr) in Fair Value of Investments 		  2,204,734 		  228,166 
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)		  952,944  		  (1,030,987) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)	 $	 54,822,800  	 $	 64,967,093 	 

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues,  
Expenses, Gains, Losses and Transfers	 $	 (3,004,104)	 $	 (1,594,517)

Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains, Losses AND Transfers		

Capital Appropriation 
     (Higher Education Assistance Funds)	 $	  7,435,238 	 $	 7,435,238  
Additions to Permanent and 
	     Term Endowments		  290,511  		  2,152,521  
Intercomponent Transfers		  6,424,286 		  (71,950)
Transfers Out		  (823,131)		  (661,719)
Legislative Appropriations Lapsed		  (7)		  (1,588)

Total Other Revenues, Expenses, 
Gains, Losses and Transfers	 $	  13,326,897 	 $	 8,852,502 

 
Change In Net Assets	 $	 10,322,793  	 $	 7,257,985 	

Net Assets Beginning	 $	  102,750,681 	 $	 95,492,696  
Restatements		  (150,883)		

 
Net Assets Beginning, as Restated	 $	 102,599,798 		  95,492,696  

Net Assets, Ending	 $	 112,922,591  		  102,750,681 

Financial statements
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University of Houston DOWNTOWN - statement of cash flows  
As of August 31, 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities		  2012		  2011

Proceeds Received from Students  
     and Customers	 $	 62,496,685      	 $	 54,983,394      
Proceeds from Loan Programs		  1,647,758      		  1,916,256      
Proceeds from Other Revenues		  12,694,777      		  13,230,143   
Payments to Suppliers for Goods  
     and Services		  (20,117,970)  		  (19,434,042)
Payments to Employees		  (70,611,575)		  (71,330,858)
Payments for Loans Provided		  (1,749,118)		  (1,863,219)
Payments for Other Expenses		  (33,767,961)  		  (34,831,828) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) 
By Operating Activities	 $	 (49,407,404)  	 $	 (57,330,154)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Proceeds from State Appropriations	 $	 23,679,467       	 $	 34,631,255      
Proceeds from Gifts		  1,456,233       		  1,357,988      
Proceeds from Endowments		  290,511        		  (363,602)   
Proceeds of Transfers from Other Funds		  7,102,602      		  306,492    
Proceeds from Other Revenues		  27,362,174      		  29,460,980     
Payments for Other Uses		  (1,292,109)		  (2,098,059) 

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital  
Financing Activities	 $	 58,598,878      	 $	 63,295,054     

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities		

Proceeds from Capital Financing Activities	 $	 10,260,209      	 $	 7,435,238      
Payments for Additions to Capital Assets		  (5,450,767)  		  (5,918,980)
Payments of Other Costs on Debt Issuance		  (1,233,539)		
Payments of Principal and Interest  

	     on Debt Issuance		  (7,987,148)		  (6,469,655) 

Net Cash Used by Capital and  
Related Financing Activities 	 $	 (4,411,245)  	 $	 (4,953,397)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities		  2012		  2011

Proceeds from Interest and Investment Income	 $	 785,172     	 $	 1,575,296    
Payments to Acquire Investments		  (585,406) 		

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities	 $	 199,766   	 $	 1,575,296 

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and  
	     Cash Equivalents		  4,979,995  		  2,586,799   
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 1	 $	 27,512,362     	 $	 24,925,563 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, August 31	 $	 32,492,357   	 $	 27,512,362  

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
     Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss)	 $	 (57,826,904)	 $	 (66,561,610)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
     Provided (Used) by Operating Activities				  

Amortization and Depreciation	 $	 7,070,095     	 $	 6,967,492    
Classification Differences		  (101,360)  		   
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables  
     and Loans		  (767,045)   		  (1,660,221)
(Increase) Decrease in Inventories		  789   		  589  
(Increase) Decrease in Other Assets		  (19,046)		  (25,689	) 
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses		  204,327  		  484,383   
Increase (Decrease) in Payables		  523,411   		  1,023,257 
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Income		  1,997,267   		  2,381,245   
Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities		  (488,938)  		  60,400  

 
Total Adjustments	 $	 8,419,500     	 $	 9,231,456    
 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	$	 (49,407,404)	 $	 (57,330,154)

Financial statements
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Financial statements

University of Houston downtown - matrix of operating expenses 
As of August 31, 2012

Expenses by Natural Classification		  2012	 2011

Cost of Goods Sold	 $	 1,979     	 $	 1,699   
Salaries and Wages		  57,531,327     		  58,073,311    
Payroll Related Costs		  13,321,611     		  13,558,631    
Professional Fees and Services		  6,301,177     		  6,209,750     
Federal Pass-Through Expenses		  8,820		  10,000
Travel			   1,013,646   		  795,419   
Materials and Supplies		  4,247,967   		  4,715,793   
Communication and Utilities		  3,059,025   		  2,554,284   
Repairs and Maintenance		  1,910,364   		  2,219,233   
Rentals and Leases		  904,830   		  1,062,391   
Printing and Reproduction		  262,275  		  261,770   
Depreciation and Amortization		  7,070,095   		  6,967,492   
Interest		  10,163   		  18,835   
Scholarships		  32,856,075   		  32,897,581   
Claims and Losses		  81,857   		  197,933   
Other Operating Expenses		  3,133,342     		  2,994,920     

Total Operating Expenses	 $	 131,714,553    	 $	 132,539,042     

Expenses by Functional Classification		  2012	 2011

Instruction	 $	 37,671,875    	 $	 38,301,509    
Research		  2,217,057    		  1,473,222    
Public Service		  4,256,532    		  3,784,092    
Academic Support		  16,794,912   		  17,423,558   
Student Services		  3,423,337    		  4,011,293    
Institutional Support 		  15,933,770   		  15,356,050   
Physical Plant 		  6,189,453   		  5,831,035   
Scholarships and Fellowships		  31,251,119   		  32,677,308   
Auxiliary Enterprises		  6,906,403   		  6,713,483   
Depreciation and Amortization		  7,070,095    		  6,967,492    

Total Expenses by Expenditure Function	 $	 131,714,553    	 $	 132,539,042    
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University of Houston victoria - Statement of net assets 
As of August 31, 2012

Assets		  2012	 2011

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents	 $	 6,510,290     	 $	 9,112,242    
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents		  (704,951)  		  (998,130)
Loans and Contracts 		  1,956,803   		  1,982,889  
Legislative Appropriations		  3,372,747     		  2,746,507    
Receivables		  6,153,576     		  6,104,431    
Prepaid Items		  1,150,629     		  990,951   	

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS	 $	 18,439,094     	 $	 19,938,890    

Non-Current Assets
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents	 $	 329,713      	 $	 440,324     
Loans and Other Receivables		  29,561,318      		  17,810,304     
Investments		  38,009 		  5,609 
Capital Assets, Non-Depreciable, 		
	     Non-Amortizable		  2,162,213      		  1,591,043     
Capital Assets, Depreciable, 
     Amortizable		  34,929,771      		  34,606,390     
Accumulated Amortization/Depreciation		  (14,701,662) 		  (13,020,452)
Deferred Charges		  20,787,037    		  20,551,869    

TOTAL Non-current ASSETS	 $	 73,106,399     	 $	 61,985,087     

TOTAL ASSETS	 $	 91,545,493     	 $	 81,923,977    

Liabilities		  2012	 2011

Current Liabilities
Payables	 $	 3,357,663    	 $	 3,903,612    
Unearned Revenues		  9,719,699    		  9,156,333    
Claims and Judgements Payable		  9,399  		  4,640  
Employees’ Compensable Leave		  381,029   		  399,312 
Revenue Bonds Payable		  2,596,074   	  	 2,717,048   		 
Funds Held for Others		  389,094   		  630,842  

TOTAL Current Liabilities	 $	 16,452,958    	 $	 16,811,787    

Non-Current Liabilities
Employee’s Compensable Leave		  405,896    		  433,803    
Revenue Bonds Payable		  48,919,817   		  40,239,106   
Claims and Judgments Payable 		  670  		  372  

Total Noncurrent Liabilities	 $	 49,326,383    	 $	 40,673,281    

Total Liabilities	 $	 65,779,341    	 $	 57,485,068    

Net Assets				  

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt	 $	 10,013,586    	 $	 9,183,922    
Restricted, Debt Retirement		  2,291,464    		  723,714    
Restricted, Capital Projects		  258,679 		  8,964 
Restricted, Endowment Funds 		  7,800,240   		  7,208,463   
Restricted, Other		  1,707,657     		  1,718,231    
Unrestricted		  3,694,526     		  5,595,615    

Total Net Assets	 $	 25,766,152    	 $	 24,438,909    

Financial statements
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University of Houston VICTORIA - Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
As of August 31, 2012

Operating Revenues		  2012		  2011

Tuition and Fees, Net of Discounts	 $	 16,735,095     	 $	 14,987,005     
Sales of Goods and Services		  1,712,647     		  1,749,745  
Federal Revenue		  162,786     		  482,875     
State Grant Revenue		   684,875    		  798,798     
Other Grants and Contracts		  396,843     		   512,741   

 
Total Operating Revenues	 $	 19,692,246     	 $	   18,531,164   

Operating Expenses 

Instruction	 $	    19,763,372   	 $	 18,473,491     
Research		  118,884      		  162,647     
Public Service		  804,473     		  805,108    
Academic Support		  6,331,208     		  5,962,053    
Student Services		  5,571,449     		  4,463,825   
Institutional Support		  4,858,241    		  4,917,645    
Operation and Maintenance of Plant		  2,041,560    		  1,988,881    
Scholarships and Fellowships		  2,823,889   		  3,420,057   
Auxiliary Enterprises		  2,087,484   		  2,062,152  
Depreciation and Amortization		  1,763,425   		  1,653,556  

Total Operating Expenses	 $	 46,163,985     	 $	 43,909,415   
 
Operating Income (Loss)	 $	 (26,471,739) 	 $	 (25,378,251)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)		  2012	 2011

Legislative Revenue	 $	  16,973,793  	 $	 18,922,454   
Gifts			    394,798  		  310,292   
Federal Revenue Non Operating		  4,900,464   		  5,985,184 
Investment Income		  236,546  		  704,955  
Interest Expense and Fiscal Charges		  (2,387,298)		  (2,178,556)
Net Incr (Decr) in Fair Value of Investments 		  899,768  		  42,103  
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)		  436,827   		  (2,167,390) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)	 $	 21,454,898   	 $	 21,619,042 	 

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues,  
Expenses, Gains, Losses and Transfers	 $	 (5,016,841)	 $	 (3,759,209)

Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains, Losses AND Transfers		

Capital Appropriation 
     (Higher Education Assistance Funds)	 $	  2,393,921  	 $	 2,393,921   
Additions to Permanent and 
	     Term Endowments		  49,730   		  195,832   
Intercomponent Transfers		  4,079,333  		  28,136 
Transfers Out		  (179,328)		  (147,600)

Total Other Revenues, Expenses, 
Gains, Losses and Transfers	 $	  6,343,656  	 $	 2,470,289  

 
Change In Net Assets	 $	 1,326,815   	 $	 (1,288,920)  	

Net Assets Beginning	 $	  24,438,909  	 $	 25,730,351  
Restatements		  428 		  (2,522)

 
Net Assets Beginning, as Restated	 $	 24,439,337  		  25,727,829   

Net Assets, Ending	 $	 25,766,152   		  24,438,909   

Financial statements
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University of Houston Victoria - statement of cash flows  
As of August 31, 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities		  2012	 2011

Proceeds Received from Students  
     and Customers	 $	 17,520,758       	 $	 16,874,800       
Proceeds from Loan Programs		  3,425,188       		  3,704,010       
Proceeds from Other Revenues		  2,933,542       		  1,954,251    
Payments to Suppliers for Goods  
     and Services		  (13,307,495)  		  (13,270,065) 
Payments to Employees		  (27,625,150)		  (25,945,409) 
Payments for Loans Provided		  (3,399,101)		  (3,762,705) 
Payments for Other Expenses		  (4,484,792)  		  (4,016,850) 

Net Cash Provided (Used) 
By Operating Activities	 $	 (24,937,050)  	 $	 (24,461,968)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Proceeds from State Appropriations	 $	 16,347,553        	$	 19,677,813       
Proceeds from Gifts		  413,730        		  503,474       
Proceeds from Endowments		  49,730         		  195,832   
Proceeds of Transfers from Other Funds		  4,416,097       		  149,393     
Proceeds from Other Revenues		  4,900,464       		  5,985,184      
Payments for Other Uses		  (508,669)		  (1,060,485)

 
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital  
Financing Activities	 $	 25,618,905       	 $	 25,451,211      

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities		

Proceeds from Capital Financing Activities	 $	 13,949,829       	 $	 5,494,516       
Payments for Additions to Capital Assets		  (976,337)  		  (3,989,941)
Payments of Principal and Interest  
	     on Debt Issuance		  (16,339,190)		  (6,488,823) 

Net Cash Used by Capital and  
Related Financing Activities 	 $	 (3,365,698)  	 $	 (4,984,248)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities		  2012	 2011

Proceeds from Interest and Investment Income	 $	 1,136,315      	 $	 841,738    
Payments to Acquire Investments		  (871,855) 		  (9,514	)

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities	 $	 264,460    	 $	 832,224 

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and  
	     Cash Equivalents		  (2,419,383)  		  (3,162,781	)   
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 1	 $	 8,554,436      	 $	 11,717,217 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, August 31	 $	 6,135,053    	 $	 8,554,436  

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
     Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss)	 $	 (26,471,739)	 $	 (25,378,251)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
     Provided (Used) by Operating Activities				  

Amortization and Depreciation	 $	 1,763,425      	 $	 1,653,556    
Classification Differences		  26,087   		  (58,695	) 
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables  
     and Loans		  (67,148)   		  (212,740)
(Increase) Decrease in Other Assets		  39,101		  (55,525	) 
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses		  (159,678)  		  737,423   
Increase (Decrease) in Payables		  (589,655)    		  (1,714,160	) 
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Income		  563,365    		  564,738   
Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities		  (40,808)  		  1,686  

 
Total Adjustments	 $	 1,534,689      	 $	 916,283     
 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	$	 (24,937,050)	 $	 (24,461,968)

Financial statements
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Financial statements

University of Houston victoria - matrix of operating expenses 
As of August 31, 2012

Expenses by Natural Classification		  2012	 2011

Salaries and Wages	 $	 22,267,369      	 $	 21,239,017      
Payroll Related Costs		  5,310,710      		  5,111,488     
Professional Fees and Services		  6,146,539      		  5,702,116       
Travel			   525,085    		  626,259     
Materials and Supplies		  1,500,876    		  1,576,802     
Communication and Utilities		  1,201,594     		  1,106,882     
Repairs and Maintenance		  1,382,867     		  586,562     
Rentals and Leases		  1,263,955    		  791,006     
Printing and Reproduction		  140,612    		  140,629     
Depreciation and Amortization		  1,763,425     		  1,653,556     
Interest		  631     		  655     
Scholarships		  3,572,161     		  4,052,280     
Claims and Losses		  34,055     		  40,284     
Other Operating Expenses		  1,054,106      		  1,281,879      

Total Operating Expenses	 $	 46,163,985     	 $	 43,909,415      

Expenses by Functional Classification		  2012	 2011

Instruction	 $	 19,763,372     	 $	 18,473,491     
Research		  118,884     		  162,647     
Public Service		  804,473     		  805,108     
Academic Support		  6,331,208    		  5,962,053    
Student Services		  5,571,449     		  4,463,825     
Institutional Support 		  4,858,241    		  4,917,645    
Physical Plant 		  2,041,560    		  1,988,881    
Scholarships and Fellowships		  2,823,889    		  3,420,057    
Auxiliary Enterprises		  2,087,484    		  2,062,152    
Depreciation and Amortization		  1,763,425     		  1,653,556     

Total Expenses by Expenditure Function	 $	 46,163,985     	 $	 43,909,415     
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University of Houston system administration - Statement of net assets 
As of August 31, 2012

Assets		  2012	 2011

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents	 $	 181,930,026      	 $	 49,703,984     
Short-term Investments		  231,842,556   		  147,505,357 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 		  5,902,818    		  5,568,162   
Legislative Appropriations		  765,389      		  806,984     
Receivables		  13,555,555      		  8,164,789     
Prepaid Items		  57,962      		  43,008    	

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS	 $	 434,054,306      	 $	 211,792,284     

Non-Current Assets
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents	 $	 (138,004,179)      	 $	 2,750,857      
Loans and Other Receivables		  6,565,310       		  12,859,881      
Investments		  637,925,375  		  611,083,257  
Capital Assets, Non-Depreciable, 		
	     Non-Amortizable		  6,399,751       		  6,528,754      
Capital Assets, Depreciable, 
     Amortizable		  91,771,914       		  91,483,008      
Accumulated Amortization/Depreciation		  (41,636,693) 		  (33,081,271)

TOTAL Non-current ASSETS	 $	 563,021,478      	 $	 691,624,486      

TOTAL ASSETS	 $	 997,075,784      	 $	 903,416,770     

Liabilities		  2012	 2011

Current Liabilities
Payables	 $	 834,229,995     	 $	 691,894,188     
Unearned Revenues		  4,402     		  4,166     
Notes and Loans Payable		  25,123,000   		  42,141,000   
Claims and Judgments Payable		  13,816    		  971  
Employees’ Compensable Leave		  364,038    	  	 384,301   		 
Funds Held for Others		  20,357    		  25,606   

TOTAL Current Liabilities	 $	 859,755,608     	 $	 734,450,232     

Non-Current Liabilities
Employee’s Compensable Leave		  387,796     		  417,495     
Claims and Judgments Payable 		  281   		  4  

Total Noncurrent Liabilities	 $	 388,077     	 $	 417,499     

Total Liabilities	 $	 860,143,685     	 $	 734,867,731     

Net Assets				  

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt	 $	 39,580,421     	 $	 47,073,677     
Restricted, Debt Retirement		  3,087,555     		  221,393     
Restricted, Capital Projects		  15,967  		   
Restricted, Endowment Funds 		  50,224,161    		  78,119,031    
Restricted, Other		  6,452,092      		  6,112,412     
Unrestricted		  37,571,903      		  37,022,526     

Total Net Assets	 $	 136,932,099     	 $	 168,549,039     

Financial statements
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University of Houston SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION - Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
As of August 31, 2012

Operating Revenues		  2012	 2011

Sales of Goods and Services		  1,264,002      		  1,087,485   
State Grant Revenue		   25,473     		  48,427      

 
Total Operating Revenues	 $	 1,289,475      	 $	   1,135,912    

Operating Expenses 

Research		  976,312       		  1,079,042      
Public Service		  101,368      		  76,250     
Academic Support		  5,317,855      		  4,773,128     
Student Services		  255,462      		  189,991    
Institutional Support		  6,996,487     		  7,540,919     
Operation and Maintenance of Plant		  2,190,113     		  2,191,814     
Scholarships and Fellowships		  53,870    		  65,827    
Depreciation and Amortization		  8,605,896    		  8,183,552   

Total Operating Expenses	 $	 24,497,363      	 $	 24,100,523 
 
Operating Income (Loss)	 $	 (23,207,888) 	 $	 (22,964,611)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)		  2012	 2011

Legislative Revenue	 $	  27,529,314   	 $	 4,029,033    
Gifts			    98,551   		  1,252,096    
Federal Revenue Non Operating		  1,568,336    		  1,568,336  
Investment Income		  2,706,752   		  6,907,262   
Net Incr (Decr) in Fair Value of Investments 		  (21,169,309)  		  26,627,058   
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)		  7,671,512    		  549,835 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)	 $	 18,405,156    	 $	 40,933,620  	 

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues,  
Expenses, Gains, Losses and Transfers	 $	 (4,802,732)	 $	 17,969,009  

Other Revenues, Expenses, Gains, Losses AND Transfers		

Additions to Permanent and 
	     Term Endowments		  10,000    		  443,604    
Transfers In		  3,856,976   		  4,296,573  
Transfers Out		  (30,622,828)		  (7,004,577)
Legislative Appropriations Lapsed		  (58,356)		

 
Total Other Revenues, Expenses, 
Gains, Losses and Transfers	 $	  (26,814,208)  	 $	 (2,264,400)  

 
Change In Net Assets	 $	 (31,616,940)   	 $	 15,704,609 

 
Net Assets Beginning	 $	  168,549,039   	 $	 152,844,430   

Net Assets, Ending	 $	 136,932,099    		  168,549,039    

Financial statements
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University of Houston system administration - statement of cash flows  
As of August 31, 2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities		  2012	 2011

Proceeds Received from Students  
     and Customers	 $	 1,469,325        	$	 882,398        
Proceeds from Other Revenues		  25,148        		  48,605 
Payments to Suppliers for Goods  
     and Services		  (6,912,479)  		  (2,704,707)
Payments to Employees		  (10,413,210)		  (9,320,805)

Payments for Other Expenses		  (5,276,667)  		  (3,221,440)

Net Cash Provided (Used) 
by Operating Activities	 $	 (21,107,883)  	 $	 (14,315,949)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Proceeds from State Appropriations	 $	 27,512,553         	$	 11,573,369        
Proceeds from Gifts		  98,551         		  1,521,636        
Proceeds from Endowments		  10,000          		 443,604    
Proceeds of Transfers from Other Funds		  16,137,156        		  48,273,830      
Proceeds from Other Revenues		  1,568,336        		  1,568,336       
Payments for Other Uses		  (30,656,498)		  (22,954,784)

 
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital  
Financing Activities	 $	 14,670,098        	$	 40,425,991       

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities		

Proceeds from Other Financing Activities	 $	 102,838,723        	$	 35,801,132 
Payments for Additions to Capital Assets		  (210,376)  		  (2,765,911)
Payment of Principal on Debt 		  (17,018,000)

Payments of Other Costs of Debt Issuance		  (3,067,717)		  (76,872,984)

Net Cash Used by Capital and  
Related Financing Activities 	 $	 82,542,630   	 $	 (43,837,763)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities		  2012	 2011

Proceeds from Sales of Investments	 $	 577,781,731       	 $	 497,425,887 
Proceeds from Interest and  
	     Investment Income		  155,886  		  12,702,674	
Payments to Acquire Investments		  (662,236,800)		  (492,481,254)

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities	 $	 (84,299,183)    	 $	 17,647,307 

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and  
	     Cash Equivalents		  (8,194,338)  		  (80,414)
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, September 1	 $	 58,023,003       	 $	 58,103,417  

Cash and Cash Equivalents, August 31	 $	 49,828,665     	 $	 58,023,003   

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
     Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss)	 $	 (23,207,888)	 $	 (22,964,611)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
     Provided (Used) by Operating Activities				  

Amortization and Depreciation	 $	 8,605,896       	 $	 8,183,552     
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables  
     and Loans		  (5,517,905)   		  (1,308,150)
(Increase) Decrease in Other Assets		  (324)		  178  
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses		  (14,954)  		  (42,984)   
Increase (Decrease) in Payables		  (2,189,084)    		  1,388,625 
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Income		  236     		  (21,282)   
Increase (Decrease) in Other Liabilities		  1,216,140   		  448,723   

 
Total Adjustments	 $	 2,100,005       	 $	 8,648,662      
 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	$	 (21,107,883)	 $	 (14,315,949)

Financial statements
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Financial statements

University of Houston system administration - matrix of operating expenses 
As of August 31, 2012

Expenses by Natural Classification		  2012	 2011

Salaries and Wages		  7,848,117       		  7,913,065       
Payroll Related Costs		  1,628,672       		  1,576,148      
Professional Fees and Services		  2,342,361       		  1,997,208        
Travel			   70,479     		  71,076      
Materials and Supplies		  350,300     		  537,654      
Communication and Utilities		  686,444      		  667,892      
Repairs and Maintenance		  292,317      		  392,029      
Rentals and Leases		  266,138     		  246,657      
Printing and Reproduction		  41,169     		  44,962      
Depreciation and Amortization		  8,605,896      		  8,183,552      
Interest		  1,591,781      		  1,579,211      
Scholarships		  523,439      		  684,139      
Claims and Losses		  30,200      		  21,892      
Other Operating Expenses		  220,050       		  185,038       

Total Operating Expenses	 $	 24,497,363      	 $	 24,100,523       

Expenses by Functional Classification		  2012	 2011

Instruction	 $	         	$	       
Research		  976,312      		  1,079,042      
Public Service		  101,368       		  76,250      
Academic Support		  5,317,855       		  4,773,128     
Student Services		  255,462        		  189,991      
Institutional Support 		  6,996,487       		  7,540,919     
Operation and Maintenance of Plant 		  2,190,113       		  2,191,814     
Scholarships and Fellowships		  53,870     		  65,827     
Depreciation and Amortization		  8,605,896      		  8,183,552      

Total Expenses by Expenditure Function	 $	 24,497,363      	 $	 24,100,523      
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Strategic goals adopted by the University of 
Houston System Board of Regents influence  
the mission statements of each of the 
component universities. The most prominent  
of these goals is the principle of Student  
Access and Success. Each university within the 
System makes student success its top priority 
and holds itself publicly accountable for 
achieving this goal. Together the University  
of Houston System and its component 
universities provide many of the best 
business, engineering, education and health 
management graduates who contribute to the 
well-being of the Texas gulf coast economy.

In this year ’s Annual Financial Report we have 
taken the opportunity to share with you a  
variety of photographs of students at each  
of the universities throughout our system. We 
hope these glimpses of student life will help 
you gain some insight into the many ways 
our students engage and participate in an 
abundance of educational opportunities 
as they progress through their academic 
experience. Additionally we offer the following 
descriptions of our pathways to progress  
toward our commitment to enable and 
encourage success for our students.

University of Houston 
Goal: UH will have a student profile consistent 
with a nationally competitive public research 
university by creating an environment in which 
student success can be ensured.

–– Enrollment has increased from 2011 to 2012 
by a multitude of students, many of whom 
are making the University of Houston their 

first choice. Freshmen are meeting more 
competitive standards for admission than 
ever before.

–– Improvements in student success at UH  
have been facilitated by the university ’s 
annual commitment to investing in new 
initiatives that support student enrollment, 
persistence and graduation. These include 
increasing scholarships, expanding course 
offerings, enhancing student support staff 
(e.g., recruiters, advisers), improving the 
curriculum, and providing enhanced facilities. 
As a part of the student success initiative 
UH will have the capacity to house 8,000 
students on-campus by the fall of 2013.

–– In addition to student success at the 
undergraduate level, UH continues to make 
progress at the graduate level, which is also 
a factor in the university ’s tier-one status.  
Consistent long-term growth in graduate 
enrollment will enable UH to achieve its 
goal of a student body that is 25 percent 
graduate, which is consistent with a tier-one 
university profile.

University of Houston – Clear Lake
Goal: UHCL will provide a supportive student-
centered campus environment focused on 
student access and success.

–– UHCL’s fall 2011 enrollment was again the 
highest level in the university ’s history. As an 
upper-level and graduate institution, UHCL 
serves two very different student groups. The 
undergraduate student body consists primarily 
of community college transfer students. Over 
70% of UHCL undergraduates have attended 
one or more community colleges prior to 

Patricia Solis
Future Dancer

YOU ARE THE PRIDE
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enrollment. The graduate student body is 
represented primarily by individuals who are 
working full-time and pursuing graduate study 
on a part-time basis in the evening. In fall 
2011, Hispanic students were 28.9% of UHCL’s 
undergraduate enrollment, an increase of 
1.3%, and which also qualified UHCL as a 
Hispanic Serving Institution. Hispanic students 
now comprise 23% of UHCL’s total enrollment.  
UHCL has in excess of 53,000 alumni.

–– The university is increasingly responsive to  
the employers in our community. The 
Clear Lake area is marked by a heavy 
concentration of aerospace firms due 
to the location of NASA’s Johnson Space 
Center. Other major local employers of 
UHCL graduates include the petrochemical 
businesses, public school districts,  
healthcare institutions, and a variety of 
business and professional service firms.

–– To address student needs, UH-Clear Lake 
is committed to the recruitment, retention, 
and professional development of faculty 
as well as the proper balance between 
full-time and part-time faculty. UHCL is 
expanding program and course offerings 
off-campus and online. UHCL continues to 
offer bachelor ’s and master ’s degrees at 
various off-campus locations including the 
UH System centers at Sugar Land and Cinco 
Ranch, community colleges, school districts, 
and the Texas Medical Center. In addition to 
these off campus possibilities, UHCL currently 
offers seven masters degrees, five bachelor ’s 
degrees and eight professional development 
certificates online. A major initiative for UHCL 
which began during fiscal year 2011 was the 
start-up of the UHCL Pearland campus. From 
this newly constructed facility, which is  

a partnership with the City of Pearland,  
UHCL offers six bachelors and five master ’s  
degrees from the schools of business, 
education, and human sciences and 
humanities. Enrollment at the Pearland 
campus has grown at a rate of 27% this  
past year.

–– With the passage of Senate Bill 324 and 
House Bill 706 in the 2011 session of the 
Texas Legislature UHCL received authority 
for downward expansion (the addition of 
freshman and sophomore level courses)  
with a target date of fall 2014 for the first 
freshman class.

University of Houston – Downtown
Goal: UHD will recruit, advise, retain, and 
educate increasing numbers of students  
who will graduate from our programs,  
assume leadership roles in society, and  
meet the workforce needs of the region  
and state.

–– Expanding access to quality higher  
education has been a central component 
of the university ’s mission since its founding 
in 1974. Through flexible scheduling of 
courses, innovative use of technology and 
distance learning opportunities, the University 
provides educational opportunities for many 
who might not otherwise be able to pursue 
a college degree. The U.S. Department of 
Education has awarded UHD a $3.2 million 
grant to be used under the Developing 
Hispanic Serving Institutions Program. This 
grant will add college success programs  
and supplemental instruction and 
engagement activities for UHD students.

Ronald E. Moss
Future Professional Soccer Player
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–– The student body at UHD is widely diverse.  
With a population of 39% Hispanic, 29% 
African American, 20% Anglo, and 9% Asian, 
UHD is the most ethnically diverse university 
in the state of Texas. More than 50% of UHD’s 
students are first-time-in-college. The Texas 
Higher Education Journal has named UHD 
third in Texas among four-year institutions for 
graduating African American students, based 
on the Texas Higher Education Coordinating 
Board’s 2012 Higher Education Almanac.

–– The University ’s strategic plan identifies 
helping students succeed as its first priority, 
committing the institution to providing the 
kind of environment that encourages the 
development of students as scholars and 
leaders within their communities, and supports 
students in achieving their full potential 
through excellent academic programs.

University of Houston – Victoria
Goal: UHV will optimally shape the size and 
characteristics of the student body to ensure 
diversity and reflect the needs of the global 
leaders of tomorrow, with an emphasis on 
student access and success, and student 
participation through athletics, student 
organizations and academic success initiatives.

–– UHV’s downward expansion entered the 
third year breaking enrollment records. The 
addition of freshman and sophomores has 
more than doubled UHV enrollment in only 
two years. There were also corresponding 
increases in upper level students.

–– The university strives for high levels of student 
success and satisfaction, as it enters a 
new era as a destination university. While 

implementing its new, additional mission  
as a destination university, UHV will  
continue its historical mission of serving  
non-traditional students on campus,  
at the UH System centers, and online.  
UHV continues to provide support to  
students by developing academic  
advising, on-campus, student  
employment and adding a wider  
variety of undergraduate courses,  
thus aiding student retention.

–– UHV continues a historical mission to  
serve the non-traditional student on  
campus at UH System teaching centers  
and online. A variety of opportunities  
exist, including a new Spanish major  
as well as growing Registered Nursing  
and Bachelor of Science Nursing programs.

–– The university also considers international 
education to be vital to its mission. It  
is important that the university continue  
to enroll students from other countries  
and to provide opportunities for U.S.  
students to study abroad.

–– UHV has applied for designation as  
a Hispanic-Serving Institution from the  
U.S. Department of Education. Prior to  
downward expansion UHV’s student  
body was less than 18% Hispanic. The 
addition of freshmen and sophomores  
has raised Hispanic enrollment to  
25.5%. This designation will allow UHV  
to apply for additional grants to  
support student success.

Christi n e Moore
Futu re Motivation a l Spea ker
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